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CHAIRPERSON'S

STATEMENT

In presenting the Annual Report of the
Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd (MIC)
for the financial year ended 30 June 2025, the
Board is guided by a profound sense of duty
and commitment in upholding the highest
standards of transparency, accountability and
good governance. This Report sets out the
principal activities, financial results, and
governance measures during a period that
has been both challenging and
transformative.

Upon assuming office on 23 January 2025,
the Board encountered a complex and
difficult operating environment burdened by
legacy issues and the Company being
subjected to heightened scrutiny.
Investigations by relevant authorities on
potential malpractices and breaches of the
law were already underway, underscoring the
immediate necessity to re-examine
governance structures, reinforce compliance
mechanisms, and ensure that the MIC
adheres fully to the principles of integrity,
prudence, and sound stewardship.

Our overarching priority has therefore been
to reassess the purpose of the MIC and
ensure that the new Management
strengthens internal controls, enhances
disclosure practices, and aligns operations
with the revised long-term strategic vision of
the MIC.

In the months that followed, Management
undertook a comprehensive assessment of
the MIC's investment portfolio, including
defaulting investee  companies  while
reviewing internal processes to stabilise the
Company's operations.
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Corrective measures were instituted wherever
required. The MIC made reports to the Police
and the Financial Crimes Commission,
following which a number of investee
companies and several individuals were
placed under criminal investigations. These
matters remain under the purview of
competent law enforcement agencies and
are progressing accordingly. Concurrently, the
MIC resolved outstanding regulatory and
statutory reporting obligations to ensure full
compliance.

Nevertheless, the past eleven months of 2025
have been a defining period of reflection,
reform, and responsible management of
public funds entrusted by its sole shareholder,
the Bank of Mauritius.

In the interest of safeguarding capital, the
MIC halted all new disbursements save for
those committed to a government-owned
entity, and those pertaining to private equity
funds which the previous Management had
already contracted in the year 2024, the last
Deed of Adherence signed by the former
Management on 15 November 2024.

Anchored in its revised strategic orientation,
the MIC is now firmly focused on the
protection of its assets, the maximisation of
recoveries, and the execution of orderly and
responsible exits. Our commitment is to
return capital to the Bank of Mauritius.

At the request of the shareholder, the World
Bank Group undertook a comprehensive
audit of MIC's investments. The report, issued
in February 2025, reaffirmed the direction
taken by the MIC and provided valuable
guidance for the path forward.



To this end, the MIC has actively engaged
with investee companies to effect early
redemption of facilities. An Asset Monitoring
Committee was constituted to reinforce these
efforts, with a mandate to pursue early bond
redemptions and restructure exposures
across both bond and equity holdings. As at
end-November 2025, thirteen companies
have redeemed a cumulative amount of
MUR 3.1 billion, through voluntary early
repayments and another eight investees have
committed to an early redemption of their
bonds amounting to MUR 3.8 billion.

In instances involving defaulting investee
companies, the MIC has initiated legal
proceedings to secure repayment and/or
optimise recoverable value, guided at all
times by prudence, proportionality, and
national interest considerations. The MIC has
also initiated exploratory discussions with
potential counterparties to offload its
positions in private equity funds.

While the MIC's overriding priority remains
the recoupment of its investments, its 49%
shareholding in Airports Holdings Limited
constitutes a strategic national asset.

To support its asset optimisation strategy, the
MIC has also established a Land Committee,
mandated to oversee the development,
management, and disposal of land and
property assets held by the MIC and its
subsidiary, with a view to realising value in a
structured and transparent manner.

The orderly and transparent return of capital
to the shareholder has been initiated.
Simultaneously, the MIC is ensuring that all
obligations are duly honoured and that
residual investments are managed
responsibly. The lessons of the past year have
reinforced the critical importance of integrity,
diligence, and accountability in the
management of public financial resources.

The MIC remains steadfast in its commitment
to strengthening its governance, risk
management, reporting, and operational
frameworks in line with best practices
applicable to institutional investors.

Looking ahead, the MIC will continue to
consolidate its investment recovery efforts,
cognisant that the recoupment of certain
investments may present real challenges.
Recovery initiatives will remain closely aligned
with the divestment strategy, ensuring that
funds recovered are remitted to its
shareholder, the Bank of Mauritius.

In light of concerns relating to the ethical and
procedural rigour of certain past
disbursements, as well as a misstatement
uncovered in the audited accounts for the
financial year ended 30 June 2024, the Board
has acted decisively to commission a
comprehensive and independent forensic
audit. This exercise, which shall review all
transactions, including funding and related
processes from June 2020 onwards, is
expected to be completed in early 2026. This
initiative demonstrates MIC's unwavering

commitment to institutional integrity,
transparency, accountabilityy, and good
governance.

This year has been a defining juncture for the
MIC, a period dedicated to rebuilding trust,
strengthening governance, and reaffirming
the institution’'s commitment to the Republic
of Mauritius. The Board is confident that,
through integrity, collaboration and a clear
sense of purpose, we will restore trust in the
MIC.

On behalf of the Board, | extend my sincere
appreciation to the Management team and
staff for their professionalism and dedication
throughout this critical period of transition
and reform. | also express our deep gratitude
to the Bank of Mauritius for its continued
trust and support as we work to reinforce the
MIC's stewardship of national assets.

Hosfe

Mr Rajeev Hasnah

Chairperson of

Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd
28 November 2025
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PROFILE

About Us

The MIC is a private company limited by shares which was established by the Bank of
Mauritius, as the sole shareholder, in June 2020, in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic. Its
mission at the time was to invest and support domestic companies operating in key economic
sectors affected by the pandemic.

Since January 2025, the MIC has reviewed its strategy to focus on recouping and safeguarding
its investments and assets, while operating independently within a strict governance
structure. This has been driven by the fact that almost all of the companies to which funds
have been disbursed have successfully weathered the pandemic, making commendable
recovery, and achieving robust operational turnarounds, thus demonstrating resilience.

Our Purpose Our Values

% Integrity

@ Accountability
% ‘ @% Transparency




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board provides independent oversight and strategic direction to the Company. In the
absence of a Chief Executive Officer, the Board has functioned as the apex decision-making
body, delegating clearly defined responsibilities to the Officer-in-Charge. By exercising its
fiduciary duties, the Board ensures diligence, prudence, competence and integrity in the
conduct of its affairs, particularly in the context of managing public funds.

®
ah
&f-ﬂ& MIC Board

Mr. Rajeev Hasnah

Non-Executive Director and | |
Chairperson J

; Mr. Gerard Sanspeur
i Non-Executive Director

;';"Resig ned on 29 August 2025

,;-;' M Ramsamy Chinniah
4| II'I . .
} Non-Executive Director

'E_E‘-:u.l *Appointed on 23 Oct 2025

“id]

Mr. André Chung Shui

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Ms. Rehana Kasenally

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Ms. Bhavna Ramsurun

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Ms. Vedna Mulloo

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Dr, Ms. Verena Tandrayen-
Ragoobur

!/ Independent Non-Executive
4 Director
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COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to assist in the effective discharge of its
duties, aligned with the MIC's revised mandate. All committees report and seek authorization
from the Board.

©

&
Asset

Monitoring
Committee

®
2 =~
—\ Corporate

Audit and Governance
Risk Committee
Committee

%
/= =

*Bid
Evaluation *Land
Committee Committee

*The Bid Evaluation Committee and Land Committee were operational after the financial year 2025.
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Pursuant to its mandate change, the MIC is
undertaking an organisational structure review
to reflect the new strategic priorities and
deliverables of the Company

Staff were thus reallocated to relevant clusters to
ensure operational efficiency within the proper
governance framework. As at 30 June 2025, there
were 29 staff in full time employment at the MIC.

It is to be noted that disciplinary committees
were constituted as fromm December 2024 to
handle staff misconduct.

Since January 2025, the MIC benefitted from the
support and expertise of a team seconded from
the Bank of Mauritius, to assist the Company in
executing its mandate.
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PORTFOLIO

As at 30 June 2025, MIC investments at cost stood at MUR 57.5 billion.

Equity Private Equity Funds

MUR 27.7 Billion MUR 0.2 Billion
MIC Investment

MUR 57.5 Billion

Bonds / Notes Land

MUR 21.8 Billion MUR 7.8 Billion

*Figures may not add up to the totals due to rounding.

I ' Equity investments
' About 43% of total investments amounting to MUR 25 billion pertains to

Airport Holdings Ltd.

/\/ﬂﬁ Bonds and notes

”ﬂ” Bonds and notes holdings represent approximately 38% of the total investments,
spread across 55 investee companies operating in various economic sectors.

Land

U Land acquisitions constitute 14% of total investment and include the MIC Smart City
Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of MIC. As at 30 June 2025, the valuation gain of the
land portfolio in the accounts of MIC amounted to MUR 2.5 billion.

During the Financial Year 2025, the MIC disbursed a total amount of MUR 1.3 billion in equity,
private equity funds, notes and bonds of which MUR 12 billion was disbursed prior to
15 November 2024.

15




Amount Disbursed

D Equity Investmen -
2182 quity Investment (MUR Million)
04 Jul 24 Emtel Limited (IPO) 250
29 Oct 24 Menlo Park Ltd 45

/A
[By Private Equity Funds

The MIC has investments in three USD-denominated private equity funds managed by
independent General Partners. The Company holds non-controlling, passive interests in
these funds and does not participate in their operational or investment decision-making.

The investments were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2024 and
13 June 2024, and the agreements were signed in the year 2024, with the last Deed of
Adherence signed by the former Management on 15 November 2024.

The total disbursements for the private equity funds amounted to MUR 199 million during
the financial year 2025. The aggregate value of the committed funds amounts to around
MUR 1.3 billion equivalent. The MIC has been in negotiations with potential counterparties
to buy back the Company’s holdings in these private equity funds.

&

my Bond and Notes Holdings

During the Financial Year under review, the Company invested MUR 830 million in
bonds/notes issued by ten companies.




NVESTMENT

SREAKDOWN

Table 1: Bond/Note Investments during the Financial Year 2025

Investee Date of disbursements Total Amount Disbursed
(MUR Million)

02 Jul 24 25
Flic en Flac Ltd

02 Aug 24 25

19 Aug 24 20
Strategic Garments Manufacturers
Ltd

12 Nov 24 10
EG Management Ltd 19 Aug 24 100
Chartreuse Group Ltd 21 Aug 24 50
AVA Technopark Ltd 29 Aug 24 20
Rodrlgugs Public Utilities 09 Sep 24 60
Corporation
Hassam Mou§sa Rawat 12 Sep 24 20
Communications Ltd
Evaco Ltd 17 Oct 24 100
Aryze Co Ltd 08 Nov 24 75
Stella Di Mare (Mauritius) Ltd 08 Nov 24 325

Total 830
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INANCIAL
SERFORMANCE

The financial results of the MIC for
the year ended 30 June 2025 posted
a net loss of MUR 6.8 billion,
primarily driven by an impairment
of MUR 4.2 billion in the investment
in associates and a decrease of
MUR 3.5 billion in the fair value of
financial investments.

During the course of the audit for
the financial year 2025, Management
and external auditors uncovered an
overstatement of interest income of
MUR 486 million for the audited
financial statements for the financial
year 2024. Consequently, the
financial statements for financial
year ended 30 June 2024 have been
restated.

The fair value changes for
financial investments amounted
to a net loss MUR 3.5 billion, inter
alia, comprising of MUR 3.8 billion
loss in financial assets, and
MUR 279 million valuation gain on

property.

18



DEMPTION BY

UERS

The MIC, through its Asset Monitoring Committee, actively engaged with investee companies
to solicit early redemption of outstanding instruments before maturity. There were also a
number of companies which came forward voluntarily for an early redemption of their bonds.
During the financial year ended 30 June 2025, five companies redeemed their bonds/notes for
a total amount of MUR 1,467 million, before their respective maturity dates.

Table 2: Early Redemption during Financial Year 2025

Investee Bedaiaion Beie Amount Redeemed
i (MUR Million)

Casela Limited 09 Jul 24 140
14 Oct 24 150
FM Denim Co Ltd
13 Mar 25 25
World Knits Ltd 06 May 25 2
Anahita Hotel Limited 12 May 25 1,100
Chartreuse Group Ltd 13 Jun 25 50
Total Redemption 1,467

Aligned with its mandate, the MIC pursued its investment recovery through early redemption,
resulting in four investees redeeming their bonds after 30 June 2025, with a cumulative value
of MUR 1,261 million. Through effective collaboration with investees, another eight investees
have commmitted to an early redemption of their bonds amounting to MUR 3.8 billion.

Table 3: Redemption after Financial Year 2025

Amount Redeemed

Investee Redemption Date (MUR Million)
Attitude Hospitality Ltd 15 Jul 25 500
Lux Island Resorts 31 Jul 25 200
Merville Limited 31Jul 25 550

Rodrigues Public Utilities

. 7 2 1
Corporation 07 Oct 25

Total Redemption 1,261
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ESTEE COMPANIES UNDER

MINISTRATION/LIQUIDATION/
EIVERSHIP

N
Four investees were under administration/liquidation or receivership, including one
A after the Financial ended 30 June 2025.

Table 4: Investee Companies under administration/liquidation/receivership

Investee Date Amount Disbursed
(MUR Million)

Star Knitwear Group Ltd 04 Jun 25 425
Best Construct Co Ltd 13 Jun 25 150
Dhyanavartam Ltd 23 June 25 1,650
BSP School of Accountancy & 22 Sep 25 c5
Management Ltd

Total 2,280

/IEQ\ Investigations by Competent Authorities

Several criminal investigations were initiated by the relevant competent authorities into
transactions that had been entered by the MIC prior to November 2024. The MIC continues to
cooperate fully with the authorities, whilst ensuring diligence, transparency and accountability.
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WAY FORWARD

On the basis of an assessment of MIC's investment portfolio and
concerns relating to past governance practices and the Financial
Year 2024 accounts misstatement, the Board has commmissioned a
full-fledged forensic audit exercise with the objective to protect
and preserve the Company's assets. This reaffirms the Board's
unwavering commitment to governance principles and fiduciary
responsibility. This initiative is deemed imperative in ensuring that
accountability is preserved and transparency be displayed.

g,

Way Forward

4

The forensic audit will assess, inter alia, the integrity
of MIC's governance structures, investment approval
processes, financial disbursements, digital and
physical record systems, and operational control
environment in relation to disbursements made by
the Company since June 2020, while identifying
potential irregularities. Such an exercise will
reinforce systems and controls, while restoring
stakeholders’' confidence.

Concurrently, MIC will continue its asset recovery
and optimisation strategy in alignment with its
mandate, while addressing prevailing challenges
and prioritizing sustainable capital returns to its
shareholder.

The communication strategy is being revamped for an effective
stakeholder engagement, whilst continuing its collaboration
with law enforcement agencies and other regulatory bodies.
MIC is also strengthening its organization structure to ensure
the effective implementation of its strategy.

23
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INTRODUCTION

The Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd ("MIC"” or the “Company”) was established by the
Bank of Mauritius ("Bank”), the parent company and sole shareholder of MIC, in June 2020 in
line with its mandate to ensure orderly and balanced economic development and maintain
financial stability.

The initial strategy of MIC aimed to deploy the nation’s wealth in a prudent and optimal way to
secure the financial well-being of Mauritius and its people. However, the implementation faced
significant challenges, notably in governance and oversight.

The MIC, is a public interest entity ("PIE"), as defined by the provisions of the Mauritian
Financial Reporting Act 2004. It recognises that adherence to good corporate governance

practices is crucial for the Company’s success and its ability to deliver on its long-term strategy.

The MIC strives to act in compliance with the laws and regulations of Mauritius and expects all
its directors and employees to act with honesty, integrity and fairness.

Further information about the Company is available on its website (www.mic-ltd.mu).



http://www.mic-ltd.mu/

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Bank, as sole shareholder, put in place a new Management in November 2024 and
reconstituted the Board of MIC in January 2025 (the “Board”).

The Management and the Board are working towards strengthening corporate governance
and restoring stakeholder confidence with a renewed emphasis on integrity, accountability
and transparency throughout the Company. The Board stands guided by the Mauritian
Companies Act 2001 (the "Act”) and the National Code of Corporate Governance (2016) of
Mauritius (the “Code"”) and ensures that MIC's governance structure and its business practice
comply, as far as possible, with all the requirements of the Act and the Principles of the Code.

The primary role of the Board is to ensure that asset management and monitoring are
conducted in line with legal provisions and best practices. Having regards to this role, the
Board directs and supervises the management of the business and affairs of the Company
including, in particular:

e Ensuring that the Company goals are clearly established, and strategies are in place for
achieving them;

» Establishing policies for strengthening the performance of the Company;

* Monitoring the performance of Management;

e Deciding on whatever steps are necessary to protect the Company’s financial position and
the ability to meet its debts and other obligations when they fall due, and ensuring that
such steps are taken;

e Ensuring that the Company’s financial statements are true and fair and conform with laws
and regulations and IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”) and in compliance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2001 and Financial Reporting Act 2004;

e Ensuring the Company adheres to high standards of ethics and corporate governance.

e Ensuring the Company strengthens its risk management framework, internal controls and
regulatory compliance policies.

The improved reporting processes implemented by the Board fosters the principles of integrity
and accountability throughout the organization. In consequence of the resignation of the
former Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ”) on 15 November 2024 and in the absence of a CEO, no
major decision is taken without prior review and formal approval at Board level. In order to
ensure robust governance practices and transparency in decision-making, the Officer-in-
Charge ("OIC") is also required to submit timely updates to the Board and its committees.



BOARD CHARTER

The governance structure of MIC is outlined in its Board of Directors Charter (the “Charter”)
which was approved on 16 May 2022 and is currently under review by the Corporate
Governance Committee to align with MIC's new mandate and strengthen the governance
framework of the Company. The revised Charter will further dwell on the role, function and
objectives of the Board of Directors, Board Committees, Chairperson, CEO, and Company
Secretary. It will also set out how they interact to promote efficient, transparent and ethical
functioning/decision-making processes within the Company. The revised Board Charter will be
published in due course on the MIC's website (www.mic-ltd.mu).

In line with good governance practices, the Board ensures that regular Board meetings and
committee meetings are held throughout the financial year.

CODE OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS CONDUCT

The prevailing Code of Ethics and Business Conduct of the MIC (the “Code of Ethics”) was
approved by the Board of Directors on 11 May 2023. It sets out the corporate values and
provides a framework for what MIC considers responsible professional and individual
behaviour.

The Code of Ethics is reviewed at least once a year, and is currently is under revision and will
enhance the corporate values and standards of behaviour in the MIC's business practices. The
Company is committed to conduct its activities and business in accordance with the highest
ethical standards and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

The revised Code of Ethics and Business Conduct will be published in due course on the MIC's
website (www.mic-ltd.mu).
CONSTITUTION

There are no clauses of the Constitution which are deemed material enough requiring specific
disclosure.


http://www.mic-ltd.mu/

THE BOARD

The Board’'s main role is to maintain a high standard of governance. The MIC is led by a
committed unitary Board appointed by its shareholder. For the year under review, the Board of
MIC comprised of seven (7) highly experienced Directors: five (5) are Independent Non-
Executive Directors and two (2) are Non-Executive Directors. The recommendation of the
Code is to have at least two executive directors. The two (2) Non-Executive Directors of the
Company are Executive Directors of the parent company, the Bank of Mauritius.

Following the resignation of the former CEO on 15 November 2024, the OIC attends board
meetings and ensures the effective implementation of Board decisions. The Board believes
that the presence of two Non-Executive Directors from the parent company and the
attendance of the CEO/OIC in all Board and Committee meetings fulfils the spirit of the Code.

The Board considers that, given the size of the Company and its current scope of activities, the
current Directors have the adequate set of expertise in multiplicity of activities and sectors, an
appropriate mix of core competencies, knowledge, skills, and balance of independence to
manage the Company in an efficient manner to achieve the objectives and implement MIC's
strategy. All Directors of the Company are residents of Mauritius.

The Board has established the following Committees to assist in the effective discharge of its
duties and ensure diligent oversight, transparency, accountability, and sound governance
practices:

2 'S
.\ —=> &

Audit and Risk

. Corporate Governance Asset Monitoring
Committee

Committee Committee



ORGANISATION CHART AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board remains committed to applying the principles of sound corporate governance. The
Board operates within a defined governance framework with clear lines of authority,
accountability and responsibility as illustrated in the chart below. The Board has approved the
statements of Key Governance positions as: The Chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer /
Officer in Charge and the Company Secretary, as well as the Organisational Chart and
statement of accountabilities.

Board of Directors

Chief Executive
Officer/
Officer-in-Charge

Company
Secretary

Audit and Corporate *Asset
Risk Governance Monitoring
Committee Committee Committee

Operations

Internal Audit
& Risk and
Compliance

Organisation Chart as at 30 June 2025

*  The Investment Committee was discontinued in January 2025.
*  The Asset Monitoring Committee was set up in January 2025.



STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABILITIES

The Board is responsible for ensuring compliance of the MIC with applicable legislation,
regulation and policies, safequard the assets of the Company, and ensuring that Board
decisions are being implemented and the long-term interests of the shareholder are being
served. The Board is well aware of its responsibility to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. Where appropriate the Board can delegate that authority whilst retaining
effective control. However, the Board remains fully accountable and responsible for the
performance of the Company.

The CEO and, in his absence, the OIC is responsible for guiding and formulating strategies in
line with the Group broad objectives. The CEO’s task is to execute the strategic goals and
objectives of the MIC as approved by the Board, whilst ensuring that efficient reporting
mechanisms are in place to carry along all stakeholders. The CEO provides leadership and
direction in ensuring that the Group's value and vision is imbibed.

JOB DESCRIPTIONS OF THE KEY SENIOR GOVERNANCE POSITIONS
Chairperson of the Board

The Board is headed by the Chairperson who is a non-executive Director and is affiliated with
the sole shareholder of MIC, the Bank. In order to mitigate any undue influence of the
shareholder, the Board is composed of a majority of independent non-executive Directors
(5 out of 7). All Board Committees, except for the Asset Monitoring Committee, are composed
of and chaired by independent non-executive Directors. There is a clear separation of
responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and the executives responsible for
managing the Company’s business. The Chairperson plays an instrumental role in overseeing
the operations of the MIC with strong leadership and vision.

In consequence of the resignation of the former Chairperson, Ms Catherine LafayeBouvier
d'Yvoire on 13 December 2024 and other former Directors of MIC in November 2024, the
Shareholder at its next annual general meeting appointed Mr Rajeev Hasnah as Director and
Chairperson of the Company.

The Chairperson is responsible, inter alia, for:

e Ensuring the integrity and effectiveness of the governance processes of the Board and will
consult with the Board promptly over any matter that gives him cause for major concern.

e Acting as a facilitator at meetings of the Board.

e Running the Board and ensures its effectiveness in all aspects of its role, including
regularity and frequency of meetings.

e Ensuring compliance with all relevant regulations and legislation.



e Encouraging all Board members to engage in Board and Committee meetings by drawing
on their skills, experience, knowledge and, where appropriate, independence.

« Advising and providing support and supervision to the CEQ/OIC.

* Overseeing the succession planning process.

Directors

The following principles shape the accountabilities and duties of the constituent members of
the Board of Directors of the Company:

* Monitor the delivery of the agreed strategy within the risk and control framework set by the
Board

e Contribute to the development of Company’s strategy

» Provide specialist knowledge and experience to the Board

o Constructively challenge the CEQ/OIC and the Management of the Company

¢ Remain permanently bound by fiduciary duties

e Ensure that financial information released to the market and shareholders is accurate

Chief Executive Officer
The function and role of the CEO is separate from that of the Chairperson.
The main functions of the CEO are, inter alia to:

e Provide strong leadership

« Manage/oversee the day to day running of the Company’s operations

« Work in conjunction with the Chairperson on strategic issues

e Lead and direct senior management to implement the strategy and policies set by the
Board

e Acts as intermediary between the Board and Management

Pending the appointment of a CEO, an OIC was nominated on 21 November 2024. In the
absence of a Board at the time of appointment, the Board subsequently ratified the
appointment of the OIC on 27 January 2025.



Company Secretary

The Company Secretary provides essential support and guidance to the Board on all
procedural matters, codes of conduct, and regulatory expectations. The responsibilities of the
Company Secretary are, amongst others, to:

e Ensure that the Company complies with its Constitution and all relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements, and any procedures set by the Board,;

e Prepare and circulate agendas of Board, Board Committees and shareholder meetings and
any supporting papers in a timely manner;

* Ensure that minutes of meetings are accurately documented and circulated to members in
a timely manner; and

* Ensure meetings and resolutions of the Board are properly held and passed in line with the
Company’'s Constitution.

Since April 2025, the OIC has been acting as the Company Secretary of MIC on a temporary
basis until the appointment of a Company Secretary. She is assisted by a Secretarial team to
support the responsibilities of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary is the focal point of contact for the shareholder. All Board members
have access to the Company Secretary and the Secretarial team for any information they
require in the discharge of their responsibilities.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is a matter that falls under the
purview of the Board.

Board Meetings

The Board meets on a regular basis and holds additional meetings as and when it deems
appropriate. The agenda of each Board meeting is prepared by the Company Secretary and
circulated to the Directors at least 1 week prior the scheduled meetings, to allow them to
participate fully. The necessary arrangements are made for Directors who are not able to
attend the meeting physically. Minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the Company
Secretary with details of decisions reached, any concerns raised, and dissenting views
expressed. The draft minutes are shared with the Board for review and comments before
adoption at the next Board meeting and once adopted it is uploaded on a secured platform.



Key Focus Area of the Board during the Financial Year 2024/2025
During the financial year ended 30 June 2025, the Board was convened on 11 occasions
whereby 5 meetings were held under the former chairs’ leadership, and 6 under the newly
constituted Board.
The main issues discussed under the former chair's leadership were:

* Approval of financial statements FY 2024

e Approval of audit fees FY 2024

Sale of share in subsidiary

* Approval of all investment, including commitment in private equity funds

A summary of main issues discussed under the newly constituted Board is provided below:




Attendance at Board Meetings

The table below shows the attendance of the Directors who served on the Board of the MIC
during the period of 1July 2024 to 31 December 2024:

In attendance:

n
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The table below shows the attendance of the Directors who served on the Board of the MIC

from 23 January 2025 to 30 June 2025:

The diversity of the Board with respect to gender is currently as per below:

Male
36%

Female
64%




Board Committees
To assist the Board in discharging its duties effectively, the current Board of Directors
established the following committees in January 2025:

Subcommittees
(i)Audit and Risk Committee
(ii)Corporate Governance Committee

Other Committees
(iii)Investment Committee (dismantled by the Board of MIC in January 2025)
(iv)Asset Monitoring Committee

During the year under review, the Board continued to rely on the assistance of the Audit & Risk
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee, notwithstanding the change in the
composition of the sub-committees. In addition, to strengthen its oversight framework, the
Board instituted a working advisory committee, named the Asset Monitoring Committee
during the year while the former Investment Committee was discontinued by the Board in
January 2025. Delegation is formal and these committees operate within defined terms of
reference ("TOR") which sets out, inter alia, its membership requirements, meeting
proceedings, roles and responsibilities. The TOR is approved by the Board. The Board
Committees may review the terms of reference as and when deemed necessary to ensure they
are operating at maximum effectiveness and recommend any changes considered
appropriate to the Board for approval. These committees may not exceed the authority
delegated to them by the Board. The subcommittees are chaired by experienced professionals
who report to the Board on the issues discussed at each committee meeting. The Company
Secretary of the MIC also acts as secretary to the Board Committees and is assisted by the
Secretarial team.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. It is
the Committee’s responsibility to review the integrity of the financial statements and the
effectiveness of the internal and external auditors. The Committee is also entrusted with the
responsibility to review and approve any conflict of interest and related party transactions.

Composition
The Composition of the Audit and Risk Committee during the period July to November 2024 is
as outlined below.

Independent
Non-Executive Director 14 Nov 24
Independent 13 No 24
Non-Executive Director o
Independent NI

Non-Executive Director




The composition of the Audit and Risk Committee was reconstituted in January 2025 as
outlined below.

In attendance

Principal Matters considered in 2024-2025

During the financial year 2024-2025, the Audit and Risk Committee met three times, and the
matters discussed included:

* Restatement notice for financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024
* Review of financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025

* Review and approve audit fees for the year ended 30 June 2025

* Review of Audit fees overrun for the year ended 30 June 2024

* Review of Audit plan for the year ended 30 June 2025

* Take cognizance of company records

« Budget approval for 2025/26

e Impairment of non-performing bonds

Main Terms of Reference

e Examine and review the integrity of the financial statements before submission to the
Board, including the clarity of disclosures and adjustments resulting from the external
auditor's recommendations.

e Review significant financial reporting matters and judgements made in connection with
the preparation of audited financial statements, interim unaudited financial statements
and formal financial-related announcements.

e Review the Company's internal controls, including the systems established to identify,
assess, manage and monitor principal risks, and receive reports from Management on the
effectiveness of these controls and systems.
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Main Terms of Reference (continued)

« Consider reports from Management of any review performed by internal and/or external
auditors on the Company’s internal control and risks management systems.

* Review the risks policies applying to the Company, and their adequacy to industry best
practices and to the specific business environment.

* Review and approve conflicts of interests and related party transactions of a material
nature in line with the applicable policy.

e Ensure that the Company has adequate policies and procedures to detect and report any
potential conflict of interests and related party transactions before they arise.

* Approve the appointment of the internal auditor;

* Review and approve the internal audit charter;

¢ Monitor and review the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

» Evaluate and approve the annual internal audit plan, auditable areas covered according to
risk trends and consider reports pertaining to findings of internal audits on a periodic basis.

¢ Recommend the appointment of the external auditors and evaluate the quality and
effectiveness of the services provided by the incumbent auditor.

* Approve the terms of engagement, scope of the audit process and remuneration of the
external auditor and assess their independence and objectivity.

* Review annually in presence of the external auditor their management letter and report on
audit.

Corporate Governance Committee
The Corporate Governance Committee advises the Board on matters pertaining to corporate

governance and ensures that the principles of the National Code of Corporate Governance are
applied.

Composition

The Composition of the Corporate Governance Committee during the period July to
November 2024 is as outlined below.
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Composition

The composition of the Corporate Governance Committee was reconstituted in January 2025
as outlined below.

In attendance

Principal Matters considered in 2024-2025

During the financial year 2024-2025, the Corporate Governance Committee met thrice, and the
main issues discussed included:

* Review of the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 30 June 2025
* Review of Board Charter and Terms of Reference of Committees
* Review of the Organisation Structure of the MIC

* Review of the profile and objectives of MIC
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Corporate Governance Committee
Main Terms of Reference

* Advise the board on all aspects of corporate governance and recommend the adoption of
best practices.

* Ensure that all reporting requirements and disclosures made in the annual report are in
compliance with the disclosure provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance.

* Review and recommend the implementation of structures and procedures to facilitate the
board’s independence from management.

e Review annually with the board the size and composition of the board as a whole and

recommend, if necessary, measures to be taken so that the board reflects the appropriate
balance of diversity, age, skills, gender and experience required for the board as whole.

Other Committees

Investment Committee
The Investment Committee was set up to review and evaluate the investment proposals in line
with MIC's Investment Policy Statement, as approved by the Board on 06 August 2020, and

provide independent feedback and recommendations to the Board on the investment
proposals.

During the financial year 2024-2025, the Investment Committee met three (3) times.

The Investment Committee was discontinued by the Board of MIC in January 2025.
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Asset Monitoring Committee

The Asset Monitoring Committee was set up in January 2025 as a working advisory committee
to look into the implementation of the disinvestment strategy of MIC.

Main Terms of Reference

Enter into discussions with the relevant counterparties of MIC with a view to amend terms
and conditions and/or to otherwise protect the interests of MIC;

* |nitiate and review early redemption requests from issuers of bonds subscribed by MIC;

e Assess requests for authorization, consent, or approval received from issuers of bonds
subscribed by MIC;

» Make recommendations to the Board with respect to way forward in relation to each of the
transactions mentioned above; and

e Look into any other such matter as may be referred by the Board of MIC.

The Committee reports to the Board on its proceedings on all matters within its duties and
responsibilities at Board Meetings.

Composition
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PROFILES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (23 JANUARY - 30 JUNE 2025)

Rajeev Hasnah

Non-Executive Director and Chairperson

QUALIFICATIONS:

MSc in Economics and Finance from Warwick Business School, United Kingdom, and a BSc
(Hons.) in Economics and Finance from the University of Mauritius. He is also a Charterholder
from the CFA Institute.

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE:

Mr Hasnah started his career as an Economist in the City, London, where he worked at IDEA
global, an independent economic research firm, advising traders and investment managers.
Throughout his career, Mr Hasnah has demonstrated a commitment to excellence and
innovation, whilst also showcasing his competence on the front of regional diplomacy and
public administration. During his tenure as Deputy Executive Director and Chief Economist at
the Competition Commission of Mauritius, and as Commissioner at the COMESA Competition
Commission, he oversaw investigations in mergers and acquisitions, abuse of dominance and
cartel cases. He also contributed to policy development and Competition Law enforcement at
the highest level both in Mauritius and across the COMESA region.

Mr Hasnah's career history also includes strategic roles in the private sector in Mauritius. As a
Chief Finance Officer in different corporate entities listed on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius,
he, in particular, spearheaded critical restructuring and investment initiatives.

Mr Hasnah also provided expert advice on competition economics and corporate finance as
an independent consultant. Mr Hasnah's early career roles as an economist and a Chartered
Financial Analyst within the investment management and corporate finance fields equipped
him with a solid foundation in financial and economic analysis, as well as investment
management and strategic planning expertise.He stands as a distinguished economist and
finance professional with a robust academic background and proven track record in both
business and public administration.

Mr Hasnah is a thought leader in Mauritius in the field of economics and finance. His views as a
trusted expert are widely sought after by leading economic journalists, and he has featured in

numerous articles and interviews in both print and broadcast media.

Mr Hasnah is currently the First Deputy Governor of the Bank of Mauritius.

19



Gérard Sanspeur

Non-Executive Director
*Resigned on 29 August 2025

QUALIFICATIONS:

BSC in Economics with a specialization in International Trade and Finance, a Post-Graduate
Degree in Economics and International Finance, and a Master's Degree in Economics with
specialization in Development Economics

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE:

A seasoned professional with over 25 years of experience in providing strategic leadership in
investment, regional trade, and economic development, Mr Sanspeur has held top positions in
both the public and private sectors, in Mauritius and the African region.

Mr Sanspeur has served as Senior Adviser to the Prime Minister of Mauritius, Chairman of the
Mauritius Investment Promotion Agency, Deputy Secretary General of the Mauritius Chamber
of Commerce and Industry, and Director General of the Mauritius Freeport Authority.

Mr Sanspeur has also acted as Senior Non-Resident Advisor to the Government of
Mozambique. He has equally been actively involved in recent assignments such as organizing
the first South Sudan Investment Conference, drafting the Investment Code for Madagascar,
and developing Special Economic Zones in Uganda and Botswana.

Mr Sanspeur was the CEO of the Association of Trusts and Management Companies, CEO of
the Global Institutional Investors Forum, Board Director and executive member of the
Investment Appraisal Committee of HIREF International LLC, Director of the private equity real
estate firm Redfort, and Managing Director of Currimjee Jeewanjee Investments Ltd. He has
also held leadership positions in various consultancy firms, including Enova Consult Ltd, where
he provided consultancy services for Free Trade Zones and Special Economic Zones.
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André Chung Shui

Independent Non-Executive Director

QUALIFICATIONS:

B.Sc (Econ) from the London School of Economics; Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales (FCA)

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE:

Mr Chung Shui is currently the Managing Director of PeaQ Advisors Ltd (PeaQ), which he
founded in 2020. PeaQ has an investment advisor (unrestricted) license from the Financial
Services Commission, Mauritius (“FSC”). He has more than 25 years of experience in the
financial services sector.

From 2011-2014, Mr Chung Shui was the Managing Director of Mauritian Eagle Insurance, a
listed composite insurance company. He was the Director of Metropolitan Life (Mauritius) Ltd
from 2011-2017. He held a senior position at the Happy World Group until 2010 and currently
sits as a non-executive Director on the board.

Mr Chung Shui was also an Owner-Director of LCF Securities Ltd, a licensed Investment
Dealer/Advisor with the FSC, from 2014-2017. He has been a non-executive Director on the
board of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius since 2010 and currently chairs the Investment
Committee and is a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is also an independent
Director of several companies in the Mauritius Global Business sector.

Directorship in other companies g

Name of Company Type of Directorship

PeaQ Advisors Ltd Managing Director

The Stock Exchange of Mauritius Co Ltd Non-Executive Director

Happy World Ltd Non-Executive Director

Greenland Global Fund Ltd Independent Non-Executive Director
Alpha Renaissance Independent Non-Executive Director
Sefalana Mauritius (Pty) Ltd Independent Non-Executive Director
Capvent Management Ltd Independent Non-Executive Director
Maritima Development Ltd Executive Director

Klumph Consultants Ltd Executive Director
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Rehana Kasenally

Independent Non-Executive Director

QUALIFICATIONS:

MSc Finance - Imperial College of Science & Technology, University of London
BSc. Statistics & Operations Research - Queen Mary College, University of London

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE:

Ms Kasenally is a seasoned professional with broad financial services industry exposure
including 13 years regulatory experience with the Financial Services Commission, Mauritius.
She has been involved in the development of the global business sector of Mauritius from the
outset in the early 1990s, focusing on policy development, and is fully conversant with the
intricacies of the sector both at regulatory and business operations levels. Her competencies in
compliance and AML/CFT and risk management mechanisms over the past 5 years have
propelled her appreciation of the evolving prudential regulatory environment.

Ms Kasenally has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director on the Board of Afrasia
Bank, Mauritius and was member of the Audit Committee and the Technology & Digital
Platform Committee. Her Board experience has provided her valuable banking insights at a
strategic level.

Having spent a decade in Kenya working as a freelance consultant for the UN and
international organizations, Ms Kasenally has acquired valuable experience in donor funded
monitoring and evaluation projects.

Ms Kasenally has contributed to several publications relating to the Mauritius IFC in the local
press and has authored a chapter in the Oxford Handbook on the Mauritian Economy, an
Oxford University Press (OUP) publication.
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Bhavna Ramsurun

Independent Non-Executive Director

QUALIFICATIONS:

The College of Law, London, Bar Vocation Course, Middlesex University, London, LLM in
International Business Law, Middlesex University, London, LL.B Honours

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE:

Ms Ramsurun is a Partner at BLC Robert & Associates and is involved in diverse aspects of
financial regulatory matters with a special focus on investment funds, capital markets
regulation and securities law.

Ms Ramsurun frequently advises on the fund formation, the establishment of financial services
providers and institutions and regulatory compliance. She has represented a number of fund
managers, private equity and venture capital firms, investment funds and financial institutions
as well as institutional investors. Her work consists of structuring and setting up fund
structures and other types of private investment vehicles, and this includes advising on
regulatory matters. She also regularly intervenes on transactional work and ongoing
compliance issues.

She advises on securities law and capital market matters including the securities offering,
listing of securities (structured products, exchange traded funds, equity, and debt securities)
on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius, takeover regulation and issuers’' regulatory obligations.
Bhavna has advised domestic and international players on their capital raise on the Mauritian
market and on a cross-border basis. She has also represented investors in acquisition of shares
and takeovers of public companies.
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Verena Tandrayen-Ragoobur

Independent Non-Executive Director

QUALIFICATIONS:

PhD in Economics (University of Mauritius), MSc in Economics and International Economics
(University of Nottingham, UK), BSc (Hons) Economics (First Class) (University of Mauritius)

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE:

Mrs Verena Tandrayen-Ragoobur is Associate Professor in Economics at the University of
Mauritius. She is currently the Dean of Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities. She is also
the co-chair of the WTO Chairs Programme and heads the Pole of Applied Socio-Economic
Research and Analysis at the University of Mauritius where she spearheads interdisciplinary
research in economics, statistics, and social policy.

Her research focuses on international and development economics, with particular expertise in
poverty and inequality, labour markets, trade, social protection and gender. She has been
actively involved in various international and national research projects, collaborating with
governments, international organizations, NGOs, and private institutions to provide evidence-
based policy recommendations.

Mrs Tandrayen-Ragoobur has published extensively in high-impact factor journals,
contributing to critical discussions on economic development, trade policy, and gender
economics. Her work is widely cited, and she has presented at numerous international
conferences and policy forums. She has also led and participated in research projects funded
by organizations.

Beyond academia, Verena plays a key role in policy advisory and capacity-building initiatives.
She has been instrumental in the development of national policies, including employment
policies, gender action plans, and social protection strategies. Her work is driven by a
commitment to bridging the gap between research and policy, ensuring that economic
analysis contributes to sustainable development, inclusive growth, and social justice.
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Vedna Mulloo

Independent Non-Executive Director

QUALIFICATIONS:

MSc Analysis, Design and Management of Information Systems (London School of Economics
and Political Science), UK. BSc (Hons) Economics (London School of Economics and Political
Science), UK, , Certified Systemic Team Coaching Practitioner, Certified Meta Coach, ACMC
(Associate Meta-Coach Certification from the International Society of Neuro Semantics)

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE:

Over the last 29 years, Vedna has held senior management positions in the private sector.
Until August 2011, she was the Deputy Director of Accenture (IT) Mauritius. She drove Charter
initiatives to achieve Centre growth objectives, key continuous improvement projects and
Great Place to Work Initiatives as well as led both the BPO and IT delivery Centres through
operational excellence and other quality certifications.

Before joining Accenture, she was the Assistant Director at the Mauritius Employers’
Federation (MEF, now Business Mauritius). She participated in high level private-public sector
forums such as Tripartite Consultations and other key national Boards and Committees,
published well-read economic publications and papers and was also the President of the MEF
Provident Association (MEFPA) and of the MEF Super Fund (MEF pension scheme).

She is currently the Director of Improov Ltd which aims at “harnessing synergies to create
great culture movements”. Improov engages in culture coaching - co-creating and
strengthening organisational cultures, Coaching at executive, team and individual levels, and
training using NLP and Emotional Intelligence foundations. She has driven culture, people
and process transformations and initiatives in organisations such as ABSA (Mtius), Marriott
Mauritius, Gamma Materials Ltd, Logidis, KPMG, ENL, MCB, IBL Seafood Hub, Princes Tuna
Mauritius, among others

Throughout her career, Ms Mulloo has served on various Boards spanning diverse industries
and economic sectors

Directorship in other companies g&

Name of Company Type of Directorship

Medscheme (Mtius) Ltd Independent Non-Executive Director
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LEADERSHIP TEAM

PROFILE OF THE OFFICER IN CHARGE, ALSO COMPANY SECRETARY

Kreeti Harrah

Officer-in-Charge and Company Secretary

QUALIFICATIONS:

BSc degree in Finance from the University of Mauritius. Qualified accountant from the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK (ACCA). Holder of an MSc in Financial
Management from Heriot-Watt University.

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE:

Mrs Harrah is an accomplished finance professional with over 18 years of experience in financial
strategy, treasury management, financial and management accounting and investment
analysis. As Head of Treasury at Sun Limited, she managed global operations for the Sun
Group, spanning from finance strategies to optimizing liquidity positions.

Throughout her career in the finance industry, Mrs Harrah has played a pivotal role in driving
major initiatives such as capital restructuring, corporate finance, and smart city master
planning, and corporate finance projects . Her leadership and strategic insight have
contributed to the success of complex financial transactions.

Since 21 November 2024, she was appointed as the Officer-in-Charge of MIC.

In addition to her executive duties and in the absence of a qualified staff as Company Secretary,
Mrs Harrah also assumes the duties of Company Secretary of MIC.

Directorship in other companies

Name of Company Type of Directorship

Airport Holdings Limited Non-Executive Director
Air Mauritius Limited Non-Executive Director
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DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT PROCEDURES
NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT AND REAPPOINTMENT PROCESS

Director’s appointment as per the constitution of the company
a) The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than Five (5) and not more than Eight (8)
members.

b) Each Director, excluding the CEO, shall be elected by a separate resolution at the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, for one (1) year but shall be eligible for re-election.

c) No person shall be qualified for appointment as Director unless the person —

i. Holds a professional qualification or university degree in the field of economics, banking,
finance, business or law; and

ii. Has recognised experience in banking and financial matters.

d) The Board shall at all times comprise of a Law Practitioner having at least ten (10) years post
gualification work experience.

e) The remuneration of the Directors for their services as such to the Company shall from time
to time be determined by the Company in meetings of shareholders.

f) No person shall, if he has ever been convicted of an offence relating to financial crime of
other criminal acts, be eligible for appointment as a Director on the Board of the Company.

g) A Director may be removed from office by the Company in Special Meeting of Shareholders
before the expiry of his period of office in accordance with the Companies Act.

The Board is supported by the Corporate Governance Committee and is responsible for
reviewing the Company’s structure, board size and composition of the Board. In doing so, it
seeks to promote a diverse Board membership in terms of skills, knowledge and experience.
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Board Induction

Upon joining the Board, the new Directors benefit from an induction programme aimed at
deepening their understanding of the Company's operations. As part of the induction
programme, all new Directors were provided an appointment letter and a comprehensive
induction pack from the Company Secretary, which contains essential Board and Company
information, Constitution, Charters, Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, Terms of References
and meet the Company's key executives. Directors also received training on the secured
Board platform of MIC.

Board Evaluation

The Board recognises the need to undertake a regular review of its performance and
effectiveness, as well as that of its committees and individual members. However, for the
financial year 2025, the Corporate Governance Committee has decided that no Board
evaluation will be conducted since there was a complete change in the composition of the
Board and new directors took office only in January 2025.

Time Commitments

Board members are expected to dedicate such time as is necessary for them to effectively
discharge their duties. Each Director is expected to act in the best interests of the Company
and ensure that his or her other responsibilities do not interrupt on his or her responsibilities
as a Director of the MIC.

Succession Planning and Directors Service Contract

The objective of succession planning is to ensure that the Company continues to operate
successfully when individuals occupying critical positions and hard to replace competencies
depart. The Board is responsible for succession planning for directorship and key
management roles in order to develop current and future leaders to ensure business
continuity.

None of the current directors have service contracts.

Professional Development and Advice

The Chairperson is responsible for the regular reviewing and agreeing with each director on
his or her training and development needs. The Chairperson should ensure that the directors
continually update their skills and knowledge. The MIC should provide the necessary
resources for developing and updating its directors’ knowledge and capabilities.
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DIRECTOR'S DUTIES, REMUNERATION AND PERFORMANCE
Directors’ Duties

The directors are made aware of their legal duties upon their appointment through the
induction provided to them. The induction pack seeks to provide them with a better
understanding of the Company's strategy, corporate governance structure, business
operations and the associated opportunities and challenges.

The Directors receive regular updates on the Company's activities at Board where
presentations on key topical areas are made.

Conflicts of Interests

The Directors have a statutory duty to avoid any instances that may give rise to conflicts of
interests, or which may be perceived by others as conflicting situations.

A conflict of interest occurs when a present transaction or relationship might conflict with a
Board Member's obligation owed to the Company and the Board Member’s personal business
or other interests.

The Board Charter contains provisions which require the Directors to disclose and manage
any potential conflict of interest.

A conflict of interest and related party transaction policy applicable to directors and
employees is provided in the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct of the MIC available on its
website.

The current Board affirms that during its term of service, any actual or probable situation of
conflict of interest were managed in accordance with the Board Charter and applicable laws &
legislations.

Interest Register

The Board expects Directors to avoid actual or perceived conflicts of interest and to promptly
disclose any changes in personal circumstances that may give rise to such conflicts. All such
disclosures are recorded in the interest register maintained by the Company Secretary, and
accessible for consultation by the shareholder upon written request during office hours.

Upon declaring a conflict, the Director concerned refrains from participating in related
discussions or decisions. Such transactions may proceed on arm’s-length terms. Related party
transactions are disclosed as per applicable accounting standards and detailed in the financial
statements.

Remuneration

The Company always ensures that the remuneration of the Directors is in line with market
practices and the remuneration reflects the demands, competencies and efforts based on the
scope of their work. Directors are remunerated in accordance with the fee schedule approved
by the sole shareholder of the Company.
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The Directors of the Board received a monthly fixed fee during the financial year 2024-25.

No Director has received any remuneration in the form of share options or bonuses associated
with the Company's performance.

The tables below highlight the remuneration received by the Directors for their involvement in
the Board and Sub-Committees during the financial year ended 2025.

The below table shows the fees paid to former Directors who served on the Board from
1July 2024 to November 2024
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The below table shows the fees paid to current Directors pertaining for the period 23 January
2025 to 30 June 2025:

DONATIONS

The Company did not make any donation during the year under review.



Risk Governance and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and for determining the nature and extent
of the principle risk it is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent in-house function designed to add value to, and improve,
MIC's operations. It helps the Company to accomplish its objectives by taking a systematic
and disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of governance, risk
management and control processes.

The Internal Auditor of the Company reports to the Audit and Risk Committee of MIC and
plays a crucial role and is responsible for providing additional assurance to the Board and
Senior Management on the adequacy and operational effectiveness of the internal control,
risk management and governance system and processes in place.

The ARC is comforted that no restriction is placed on the rights of access of the Internal
Auditor with regards to records, management or employees. The ARC has assessed the in-
house audit function of MIC in view of the staff turnover and internal movements and looked
into modalities to strengthen the internal audit function.

External Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for evaluating the independence, effectiveness
and eligibility of the external auditor before making a recommendation to the Board on their
appointment and retention to ensure overall adequacy of the Company’s internal control
framework.

For the year ended 30 June 2025, the Board has, upon recommendation of the sole
shareholder of MIC and in order to facilitate the consolidation of accounts of the Group,
approved the appointment of BDO & Co as external auditor.

The total duration of the audit assignment is for a period of one year with the possibility of
reappointing the selected firm annually, subject to regulatory provisions and approval of the
Board.
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Regarding the external audit function, the Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for:

» Recommending the appointment of the external auditors to the Board for further
recommendation to the Shareholder at the annual meeting.

» Approving the terms of engagement, scope of the audit process and remuneration of the
auditor for audit and non-audit services.

» Assessing, on an annual basis, the independence and objectivity of the external auditors
taking into account relevant professional and regulatory requirements.

» Assessing the effectiveness of the audit process.

e Reviewing annually in presence of the external auditor their management letter and
report on audit; monitor management's responsiveness and actions to the findings and
recommendations contained therein.

The external auditor has direct access to the Committee should they wish to discuss any
matters privately. Any instruction to external auditor to provide non-audit services is closely
reviewed and approved by the Board, on the recommendation of the Audit and Risk
Committee, thereby ensuring the auditor's independence. During the period under review,
the external auditor did not provide any other non-auditing services to the MIC. The Audit and
Risk Committee has discussed critical policies, judgements and estimates with the external
auditor prior to approval of the Financial Statements.

Further details pertaining to the risk governance is provided in the Risk Report
below.

Auditor’s Independence

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for monitoring the external auditor's
independence, objectivity and compliance with ethical, professional and regulatory
requirements.

Audit fees payable are commensurate with the audit services provided to ensure that an
effective audit is carried out.

KPMG BDO & CO
Financial year ended 2024 Financial year ended 2025
MUR 13,166,622 MUR 7,500,000

The Auditor should ensure that it observes the highest standards of business and professional
ethics and, in particular, that its independence is not impaired in any manner.
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Information Technology Security Policy

The MIC complies with the Information Technology Policy, IT and Information Security Policy,
of its shareholder, the Bank of Mauritius.

Data Protection

The Mauritian Data Protection Act 2017, which came into effect in January 2018, brought a
major change in Mauritius' legal landscape. The Board of the MIC ensures that all its
operations are compliant with the data protection regulations.

Whistleblowing Policy

The MIC has approved a whistleblowing policy which is included in the Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct of the Company available on its website.This policy aims to provide a means
for issues to be raised in good faith, concerning potential breaches of laws, rules, regulation or
compliance. The whistleblowing mechanism is intended to encourage responsible behavior
that restores MIC's reputation.

REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY

Directors’ Responsibility

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and audited financial
statements in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. The provisions of the
Mauritian Companies Act 2001 further require the Directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. The Directors affirm their
responsibilities in the preparation of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements of the
Company, which comply with IFRS Accounting Standards, the Mauritian Companies Act and
the Financial Reporting Act 2004.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS

MIC’s key stakeholders
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Shareholding structure

As at 30 June 2025, MIC has 8,100,000 Ordinary Shares in issue, representing 100% ownership
by the Bank of Mauritius.

Communication (Meeting) with stakeholders
Relations with shareholders and other key stakeholders

The Board is responsible for ensuring that appropriate communications take place between
the MIC, its shareholder and other key stakeholders. The Board ensures that commitments
with the stakeholders, in line with the disinvestment strategy, are well managed. The Board
respects the interests of its shareholder and other stakeholders within the context of its
fundamental purpose.

Communication with key stakeholders

The Board of MIC promotes an open and transparent communication with all stakeholders to
ensure that they receive the correct and adequate information while upholding trustworthy
relationships with them. It maintains an ongoing dialogue with its shareholder by updating
them of all material business developments that influence the Company in a transparent and
timely manner through various communication channels.

The Company provides regular review of its activities to its sole shareholder and a review of its
performance and outlook.

Shareholder’s Information and Calendar of Events

Financial year end

BECEINICEIN Annual meeting of shareholder
2025

December Publication of financial year
2025 results

In accordance with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001, notice of annual meeting is sent to the
sole shareholder of MIC.
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A Risk-Focused Retrospective of the year: Lessons & Outlook

Since January 2025 the new Board has revamped MIC's operational infrastructure to align with
its revised mandate and objectives. In so doing, it is seeking to implement a comprehensive,
forward-looking and resilient framework for a continuous monitoring system into MIC's
governance, risk and compliance infrastructure.

Management has been mandated to exercise its duties with utmost integrity and to drive
informed decision-making to bolster MIC's ability to navigate through complex situations.
Much emphasis has been laid on the adoption of a strong risk culture across the organization.
Staff have been reminded of their obligation to adopt the right ethical behaviour in the
conduct of MIC's operations, in line with the principles outlined in the Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct, and to uphold the organization’s commitment towards its stakeholders.
The serious situation faced by MIC during the financial year required the organization to
review the risk profiling of its investments within the risk framework. This reassessment will
cater for the dynamic environment and focus on the risks impacting on MIC's operations,
financial performance and strategic decision. This initiative, not only aims to strengthen the
internal controls, but to enhance transparency and accountability at all levels. Through this
strengthened framework, the MIC is determined that potential threats, whether financial,
operational, or reputational, are identified, assessed and mitigated at the earliest stages, for
the stability of the organization.

Notwithstanding the internal and external operating challenges through which the MIC had
to navigate during the last financial year, Management is optimistic and expects the risk
landscape to stabilize in the forthcoming period, with more stringent processes and policies
being implemented throughout the organization.

Risk Management

Risk Strategy and Roadmap

The past experiences gained are invaluable for setting MIC's future direction. Over the
forthcoming period, MIC's risk strategy will be centered on management of the overall
portfolio, striving to optimize returns whilst preserving the value of the organisation’'s assets.
The objective is to manage assets, recoup investments made and to prioritize the repatriation
of capital back to its shareholder. Accordingly, the MIC will undertake a continuous and
rigorous monitoring of portfolio performance, with a robust system of controls, oversight and
scenario planning to ensure resilience against unwarranted circumstances. In the same line, a
disinvestment strategy has been adopted and a disciplined disinvestment approach is being
embraced to recover MIC's funds.

Risk Governance

At the MIC, risk management is a collective responsibility across the organisation, with
ultimate oversight resting with the Board. This encompasses the determination of risk
parameters, endorsing and overseeing the implementation of the risk management policy
and framework and reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management system in place. In
exercising this governance role, the Board ensures that management embeds risk
considerations into strategy and operations and that the risk environment is managed
effectively.

36



37

To discharge its function properly, the Board is assisted by the Audit and Risk Committee
(ARC), which enables it to formulate, review and approve the monitoring and risk
management policies. The ARC is also tasked to monitor and ensure the:

(i) proper functioning of internal control processes;

(ii) preparation of accurate financial reporting and statements in compliance with applicable
legal requirements and accounting standards; and

(iii) implementation of requisite actions for gaps identified and/ or any non-compliance have
been remedied, amongst others.

MIC's risk governance structure

Board of Directors Management Team

-Advises the Board on the risk

-Responsible  for driving the

-Supervise  the overall risk  management framework, policies d d impl tinal th
management  principles and  gnd strategies a'g;:‘n g &n |mpfemen “"‘i e
) ) risk management framework.

framework. i lEmsUre  EEE ey RS e -ldentify agnalyse and report risks
‘Responsible for setting MIC's  communicated in line with best g ' uniti
risk appetite and tolerance level  ractices aF” ODDQLUHI Ies. |

inni i . ' . -Foster risk-awareness culture
underpinning strategic  .Review and obtain reasonable
decisions. assurance that the risk

management system is effective.

Risk Management Processes

The MIC is working towards its Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework, as a structured
methodology for identifying and assessing risks, including their likelihood and potential
impact. The Three Lines of Defence model will be used to clearly define the roles for risk
ownership, oversight and independent assurance, for an effective mitigation and reporting.

Three lines of defence model

MIC's first line of defence shall be responsible for the

First Line . .
. day-to-day management of risk. This shall be
(Operations . . o ¢
enforced through the implementation of policies and
Management)

procedures, embedding controls and policies and
overseeing operational risk exposures.

The second line of defence shall be responsible for
establishing the limits, rules and constraints under

Second Line

(Risk Oversight)
which the first line activities shall be performed
Third Line MIC's third line of defence will evaluate and provide
(Independent independent assurance on the effectiveness of the
Assurance) risk governance, control environment and risk
management processes and mechanisms. The

findings will thereafter be reported to the ARC and/or
the Board.



Management of Key Risks

In response to the change in MIC's scope of activities in the second half of the financial year, it
has become imperative for Management to undertake a thorough reassessment of the
organization's key risks. This process ensured that potential risks, which could impact the
achievement of the company’s strategic objectives, were proactively identified, assessed and
mitigated. By realigning the risk management framework with the newly defined scope, the
MIC is better positioned to mitigate emerging threats, safeguard against disruptions and
reinforce its resilience in the face of future challenges.

MIC's risk elements are categorized in terms of financial and non-financial risks.

For the period under review, the risks outlined below were deemed to be of significant
concern for the MIC.

Credit Risk pertains to the risk of financial loss adversely impacting
on the company, should the investees fail to fulfill their financial
and contractual obligations as and when they fall due.

Credit risk represented MIC's primary risk exposure. Notwithstanding ongoing monitoring of
the financial performance of investees, a re-assessment of MIC's investment portfolio in the
second half of the financial year highlighted some gaps in the existing process. The review
revealed that certain investees were facing operational challenges and struggling to meet
their financial obligations, a factor that had not been adequately reflected in previous
management’s assessment. These have resulted into an underestimation of the associated
credit risk. This prompted the new Management to conduct a targeted process audit. A
comprehensive review of financial engagements with high-risk entities has been conducted,
including the scrutiny of collateralization options to secure exposure. While credit risk
continues to be a significant concern, the MIC is implementing targeted strategies to
effectively manage its exposure. To this end, it has been resolved that more frequent and in-
depth financial health assessments of investees will be conducted, coupled with an enhanced
credit risk monitoring system, ensuring timely interventions and more robust risk
management.
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Reputational risk arises fromm damages to MIC's image caused by
adverse media coverage and loss of credibility, which by ricochet
warrant regulatory scrutiny and result in financial losses.

Safeguarding MIC's reputation is considered a critical component of its overall risk
management strategy and it is expected to uphold high standards of transparency and
responsibility.Based on recent concerns, the MIC shall implement a comprehensive mitigation
strategy aimed at safeguarding its reputation. This includes enhancing transparency in
governance practices, improving stakeholder communications and adopting stringent
monitoring mechanisms to ensure proper use of the funds. Building a good corporate
reputation includes consistent delivery of quality services, transparent practices and
adherence to ethical standards. The MIC has initiated reviews of its internal policies and
procedures to ensure alignment with best practices and public expectations.

Regulatory and Compliance Risk is the risk of impaired integrity,
disputes, litigation or any other financial and non-financial impact
that may arise due to non-compliance with legal, regulatory and
other compliance obligation.

As an investment entity, the MIC is subject to inherent regulatory and compliance risks
stemming from the dynamic and evolving legal, regulatory and compliance landscape. In line
with its investment strategy, the MIC is mandated to conduct thorough due diligence, actively
monitor its transactions and ensure strict adherence to sound corporate governance and
anti-money laundering principles. Any failure to comply with regulatory requirements or to
adapt to legal changes could expose the MIC to significant reputational damage, undermining
stakeholder trust and perceptions.

The MIC reaffirms its commitment to uphold the highest standards of governance and
transparency. The MIC remains dedicated to operating with the utmost integrity, to
implement the best governance practices and, to restore and maintain public confidence in its
operations.



Interest Rate Risks pertain to the risk arising from changes in
interest rates thereby affecting future cash flows or fair values of
financial instruments.

Given the nature of its investment portfolio, the MIC is inherently exposed to market volatility,
including fluctuations in interest rates. These market changes are expected to influence asset
valuations and may impact the returns on investment, potentially affecting the overall
financial performance of the organisation.

Operational Risks represent the potential for loss due to human error,
deficiencies or failures in internal processes and systems, or external
disruptions. It encompasses risks associated with fraud, criminal activities
and information technology related challenges.

The MIC is acting proactively in the identification and assessment of risks and implementing
adequate controls to mitigate them. It has introduced enhanced monitoring mechanisms,
bolstered communication between departments, and implemented corrective action plans.
The organization is dedicated to fostering a culture of transparency, accountability and
operational excellence, ensuring that it is better positioned to face evolving risks in the future.

Strategic risks are the risks associated with MIC's decisions or
strategic direction which may hinder its ability to fulfil its objectives
and goals.

Pursuant to MIC's revised objectives, strategic risk is deemed as a potential threat to the
organisation. Failure by the management to duly execute the new strategies could prevent
the MIC to achieve its revised mandate and threaten its financial health. To mitigate strategic
risk, MIC's new management is leveraging on the Board and Committees’ oversight, thereby
ensuring that strategy execution is effectively monitored and aligned with MIC's new
mandate. A structured and disciplined decision-making approach is being adopted, with
independent advice being sought where needed, to guarantee key strategic decisions are
well-informed and executed.
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Cyber Risk, the MIC is dependent on technology for the smooth
functioning of its activities. A cyber-attack or serious failure in MIC's
system could result in operational disruption and data loss.

In view of the rapid technological advancement, the MIC is subject to elevated cyber-threat
exposure, which may lead to IT system disruptions and significant loss or corruption of
confidential information. The repercussions of cyberattacks extend beyond financial losses, as
they can also lead to reputational damage, legal liabilities and regulatory non-compliance,
making them critical risks for financial institutions to mitigate. To mitigate this risk, the MIC
will implement a comprehensive IT governance policy, which shall be subject to regular review
and validation by its Board. These measures are designed to maintain system integrity, uphold
data confidentiality and support operational resilience.

Liquidity Risk relates to the risk that an entity, although solvent,
cannot maintain or generate sufficient cash resources to meet its
payment obligations in full as they fall or can only do so at
materially disadvantageous terms.

The organization diversifies its portfolio across a range of financial instruments, which not only
provides flexibility but also strengthens its capacity to meet any short-term financial
obligations without disruption.

Price Risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in the fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL as the result of changes in the value of
individual bonds and land held by the MIC

The MIC is committed to enhance its risk management practices in line with its long-term
objectives. The MIC will continuously monitor and assess both internal and external risks,
adapting its strategies as necessary to address emerging threats.



Internal Audit

As anchored in the Three Lines of Defence model, Internal Audit, as the third line, plays a
crucial role in providing independent and objective assurance to the ARC and management.
To that effect, Management has recommended that the internal audit function due to a lack
of resources in the in-house function, be outsourced to an external audit firm. The internal
audit function will assess the effectiveness and adequacy of the established internal controls
and will provide for its recommendation with a view to mitigate potential risks across the
organisation. By adopting a systematic and disciplined approach, the Internal Audit will
contribute towards strengthening governance, enhancing risk management processes and
reinforcing the internal control systems in alignment with the organisation’s strategic
objectives. The Internal Audit will operate with independence and objectivity in adhering to
the Code of Ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors (llA) and to International Standards,
thereby ensuring credibility, impartiality and reliability of assessments. These professional
standards will guide the internal audit work allowing for an unbiased view whilst delivering
valuable insights in enhancing risk mitigation practices at the MIC.

It is imperative to recognize that, whilst the Internal Audit identifies potential improvement
areas and provides for recommendations, the ultimate responsibility for implementing these
outputs will lie with Management. The Internal Audit will be responsible for the design and
operational effectiveness of controls implemented by the first and second lines of defence and
to advise on enhancements for gaps identified. Upon conclusion of audit assignments,
Management will be responsible for acting on the findings, ensuring timely remediation of
control deficiencies and aligning risk mitigation with organizational objectives. This
delineation will support the integrity of the risk management framework, safeguarding
against conflicts of interest and reinforcing governance standards. It will also ensure that
corrective actions are driven by operational leadership with oversight from the Board and ARC,
fostering accountability and continuous improvement in internal control culture.

Way Forward

The MIC will reinforce its risk management framework to ensure resilience, transparency and
sustainability. Management is working towards strengthening the risk framework in the
forthcoming period, with stringent internal controls and enhancing transparency and
accountability at all levels within the organization. The new risk management framework will
assist MIC's Management to make informed decision, principally through better
understanding of prevailing and emerging risks within the mandate of MIC. It will also expand
the Management's oversight on environmental, social and governance risks, thereby
integrating ESG considerations into both the management of assets and divestment
decisions.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
(Pursuant to section 75(3) of the Maurition Financial Reporting Act 2004)

Marme of PIE: Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd
Reporting period: 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2025

The current Board of Directors, appointed on 23 January 2025, affirms that to the best of its knowledge
and based on the information and company records made available to us, the Mauritius Investment
Corporation Ltd {the 'Company’) has complied with its obligations and requirements under the Code of
Corporate Governance {2016) during the period under its oversight except for the following sections:

Principle 1 and Principle 2 [Website Disclosures]

The Code recommends that the Constitution of Organisations and Terms of Reference of Committees,
amangst other documents, be included on their website.

Hewever, the Company deems that these documents are confidential and does not consider it

appropnate to publish these on the website.

Principle 2.2 [Compozition of the Board)

The recommendation of the Code is to have at least twe |2) Executive Directars.

The Company has no Executive Director appointed on its Board. The Board is composed of a majarity
of independent Mon-Executive Directars Board. The twa (2] Non-Executive Diractors on the Board are
Executive Directors of the parent company, the Bank of Mauwritius.  The Chief Executive Officer [*CEO™)
of the Company attends all Board and Committee meetings. In the absence of a CEO, the Officer-in-
Charge {"0IC”) attended board meatings.

The Board befieves that the presence of two Nen-Executive Directors from the parent company and the
attendance of the CEQ/OIC in all Board and Committee meetings fulfils the spirit of the Cade.

since assuming office, the Board has taken steps to strengthen gowermance practices and ensure

alignment with the provisions of the law and principles of the Code.
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MAURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE TO THE MEMBERS OF MAURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD
UMDER SECTION 166 (d) OF THE COMPAMIES ACT 2001

| certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar aof
Compames all such returns as are required under the Companies Act 2001 during the financial year

ended 30 Jume 2025,

7

Secretary

Mrs. Kreeti Harrah
Company Secreta

pate: 3' Oclober &025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholder of Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd (the *Company”), set out on
pages 49 to 102 which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting pelicy information.

In gur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at June 30, 2025, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {"IFRS
Accounting Standards”) and comply with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {*1SAs™), Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {including
Intermalivnal Independence Standards) (the "IESBA Code™), We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter relating to Comparative Information

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended June 30, 2024, excluding the adjustments
described in Note 26 to the finandial statements, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financal statements on October 30, 2024,

As part of our audit of the financial statements as at and for the year ended June 30, 2025, we also audited the
adjustments described in Note 26 that were applied to restate the comparative information presented. In aur
opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit,
review, or apply any procedures to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024, of the Company,
ather than with respect to the adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of
assurance on the financial statements for the year ended June, 30 2024, taken as a whole,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
To the Shareholder of Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd (Continued)
Other Information

The Directars are responsible for the other infarmation, The other information comprises the infarmation
included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
In deing so, consider whether the other information is matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with |FRS Accounting Standards and in compliance with the requiremenits of the Mauritian Companies fct 2001,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

in preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the gaing
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease aperations,
or have no realistic alternative bul to do so.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nat a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with |SAs will always detect a material misstatemant when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered matenial if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expectad
ta influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemints.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We alsc:

+ Identify and assess the risks of materal misstatement of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusion,
fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

B0 B Lo, a finm of Chartered Accountants in Mauritius, is 3 member of BOO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantes, and farms part of the intemational B00 network of independent member Tirem,

BOHD iz the brand name for the BRO melwork and for each of the 800 Member Firms,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
To the Shareholder of Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd (Continued)
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are approgriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal cantral

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasanableness of accounting estimates
#nd related disclosures made by Directors

» {Canclude on the approgriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based an
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exsts related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Caompany’s ability to continue as a going cancern. If we conclude that a
matenal uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our audilor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statefments or, if such disclasures are inadequate, 1o medify aur apinian. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up ta the date of our auditor's report However,
future events or canditions miay cause the Company 1o cease 1o conbiue as & going concern

= Evaluate the overall presentatwon, structure and content of the financial staterments, ncluding  the
disclasures, and whether the financial slatements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achisves fair presentalion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope-and
urting of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal cantrol that

woe iderstify during aur sudit
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Mauritian Companies Act 2001

Tha kMaurtian 'f_-lj'\-rr‘:[JrIH ex Act 2007 requires that n carrying aut cur audit we consider and report o the
following matters. We confirm that

* Wehave no relationship with, or interests in, the Company, ather than i our capacity as auditar. and dealings
in the ardinary course of business

* We have ablained all information and explanations we have reguired

* Inour opinion, proper accounting recards have been kept by the Company as far as it appears fram our
acammnation of those records

Pauritian Financial Reporting Act 2004

Cur respansibility under the Mauritian Financial Regorting Act 2004 s to repart on the compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance ["Code”) disclosed in the Annual Repart and assess the explanatens goven for
nen - cumpliance with any requirement of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate
governance in the Annual Regort, the Company has, pursuant to section 75 of the Mauritian Financial Reparting
Act 2004, camalied with the reguirements of the Code

BDIE Co, 8 firm of Chartered ACcourtants in Maurithas, s a member of BOO Interrational Limited, 4 UK company limited by
gudrartess and forms part ol the stermaticeal B05 neteeork of indeasndent member 1o

B0 = bk brand rame Far Ehe B0 revwork, and for mach of the BD3G Member Birms
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

48

To the Shareholder of Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd (Continued)
Other Matter

This report is made solely to the Company's Shareholder, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the
Mauritian Companies Act 2001, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
Shareholder those matters we are required to state in an auditor's regort and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Compary's Shareholder as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Lo b0
EDO & Co
Chartered Accountants

LEL

Part Lows, Ameenah Ramdin, FCA, FCCA
Mauritius Licensed by FRC

Cctober 31, 2025

BOO B o, a firm af Chartered sccourtants in Mauritius, & o momber of BDD Inbernalional Limited, s U company limited by
puaranbee, and forme part of the iIntemational BOO negwork of Sdependent member frme,

BDO |5 the brand name for the B0G neteork and Tor aach of the B0 Member Firms,



MALURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

49
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2025
Restated®
Motes 30-Jun-25  30-Jun-24
MUR'O0O0  MURDOO
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Plant and equipment & 5150 6,847
Intangible assets 7 1.062 1438
Investmant properties 8 4,090,700 4592573
Irwgstrment in subsiciany | 5058382 7441265
Investmant in associates 10 20,736,680 23221178
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) 11 16,261,353 20,252,195
Rental deposit 13 1,344 1,844
Total non-current asseis 46,154 681 55917 280
Current assets
Inventaries 12 1,260,198 =
Other receivables and prepayments 14 13,247 20491
Cash and cash equivalents 15 28210467 26445873
Total current assets 29,483,912 26,466,304
TOTAL ASSETS 75,638,593 #2383584
EQUITY
Stated capital 17 81,000,000 81,000,000
Distributable Reserves
Retoined earmings (3,3221,289) {69,009
Reserves 17 (2,081,281) 1435564
TOTAL EQUITY 75597430 82366465
CURRENT LIABILITY
Other payables 16 41,163 17,118
TOTAL LLABILITY AMD EGQUITY T5.638,593 82383584
Authorised and approved for issue by the Board of Directars on Rl-OCT-28 and signed on its

behalf by;

Name gmp e AT P

(Chairperson)

*Refer to Mote 26 for prior year adjustments

The notes on pages 53 to 102 form part of these separate financial staterments,

Independent audrtor's report on pages 45 to 48.
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MAURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

50
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUME 2025
Restated*
MNotes 30-Jun-25  30-lun-24
MUR'000  MURTDOD
Revenue
Interest income on bonds and notes 18 942 208 A60696
Front-end, legal and registration fees 19(a) 9,176 19683
Qther income 20 85,500 29,242
Dividend Incarme 21,956 490,250
Total revenus 1,058,840 1,399.871
Expenses
Professional, legal and registration costs 19(k} 11,783 42028
General expenditure 21 51,260 105,395
Cane management fees 23,114 18409
staff salaries and other benefits 35,720 35354
Directors' fees and other committees 22 7,487 5203
Cverseas meeting, training and conferences 110 6,094
Depreciation and amortisation BELT 2,582 2965
Impairment of imestment in associates 10 4169812 1778882
Interest on Equalisation 6,037 -
Brokerage cost 3,125 -
Total expenses 4311,030 15998330
Loss before changes in fair value (3,252 190) (598 459)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at FYTPL i1 (3,811,729) 326661
Changes in fair value of investrment properties a8 279,527 107175
Changes in fair value of investrment in subsidiary 9 15,357 78917
Loss after changes in fair value (6,769,035) {85,706}
Income tax expense 28 = T
Loss for the year {6,769,035) (85, T06)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year SEETE!FJ 5] EBSE?DE!

*Refer to Mote 26 for prior year adjustments

The notes on pages 53 to 102 form part of these separate financial statements.
Independent auditor's report on pages 45 to 43
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52
SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
Restated®
MNotes 30-Jun-25 30-lun-24
MUR'000 MUR'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss after changes in fair value (6,769,035) (85,706)
Adjustments for man-cash items and working copitol movement:
- Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL 1 3,811,729 (3.26,661)
- Changes in fair value of investment properties a8 (279,527) {107,175
- Changes in fair value of investment in subsiciary 9 (15,357} (TE91T)
- Depreciation and amartisation BELT 2,582 2965
- Write off [ 10 -
- Impairment of imvestmeant in assodates 10 4,169,812 1,778,882
- Interest income (942,208) (860,696)
- Dividend Income {21,958) (490, 250)
- Gain an disposal 6.912) [3.423)
- Other payables 24,044 20,043
- Receivables 7.244 (13,449)
- Inventories 12 (78,798) -
- Rental Deposit paid 13 (5, 644) [ 500)
- Rental Deposit Forfeit 13 6,144 =
- Foreign exchange (gains)flosses (39 530) 7,054
Met cash flows used in operating activities (137,402) (88,833
Cash flows from investing octivities
Acquisition of Bonds and Notes 17 (i) (830,000) (2695000
Redemption of Bonds and Motes 17 (i) 1.467.000 30,000
Acquisition of subsidiany 5 = {2398 226)
Acquisition of investment properties 2 [B75,000)
Proceeds from sales of investment properties - 19,950
Acquisition of plant and equipment and intangible assets BET (519) [B,001)
Investment in Private Equity Funds 11 (i} (192, 667) -
Acquisition of Investment in other secunties 11 (i} (294,999) -
Disposal of Shares in subsidiary 9 719,768 -
Interect received 966 486 B5T 938
Dividend received 21,956 490,250
Met cach flows generated from/(used in) investing activities 1,857,025 (4478 080)
Cash flows from financing activity
Dividend paid (490,250
Met cash flows used in financing activity - {490, 250)
Met cash flows in cash and cash equivalents 1,719,623  (5057,172)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 45,031 (76,054)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 26,445 813 31579039
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2025 EH l.’lidi?' 26445613

1

The notes on pages 53 to 102 form part of these separate financial statements.

Independent auditor's repart on pages 45 to 48,

/




MAURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd (the *Company®) was incorporated on 2 June 2020 as a private
limited company and is fully owned by the Bank of Mauritius. The Company’s mission is to support and
accelerate the economic development of Maurtius. The Company’s registered office is at Level 5 The
Drocks 2, United Docks Business Park, Caudan, Port Louis.

The main objectives of the Company are:

= Contribute positively to the economic development of Maurntius by safeguarding the value of assets
with the view of achieving an et

- Conduct investment management and monitoring as well as divestments.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(@) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as adopted by Intemational Accounting Standard Board (IFRS Accounting Standards) and in
compliance with the requirements of the Mauritian Companies Act 2001 and the Maurntian Finandal
Reporting Act 2004,

(b} Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared using the going concem principle under the historical
cost basis, except for financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or less, investment in
subsidiary and investment properties, which are measured at fair value.

{c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Mauritian Rupee ("MUR"), rounded to the
nearest thousand rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financal statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standarde requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
miay differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised in the pered in which the estimate is revised and in any future period
affected.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant sk of resulting in
a material adjustment in the year ended 30 June 2025, as well as cntical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financal
statements aré provided in Note 4.



MAURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

MNOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

£. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(&) Change in presentation

In the current financial year, the company changed the presentation of receivables from and payables
to MIC Smart City Ltd, a related party, Where the company intends to settle on a net basis, amounts
due from and due to the same related party are now presented on a net basis in the statement of
financial position.

This change in presemtation affects only the classification of items in the statemert of finandal
position and has no impact on the company's profit or loss or total equity.

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

MUR'000 MUR'000
Amount Receivable fram MIC Smart City Ltd 43,673 34570
Amount payable to MIC Smart City Ltd {(31,011) {14,079)
Met Receivables 12IEEE 20,491

Gaoing concem

The Beard, at the time of approving the financial statements, is not aware of any uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt upon the company's ahbility to continue as a going concern. The finandal
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently in the financial staterments.

Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement
Iterns of plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated deprecation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of plant or equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for

as separate items (major components) of plant and equipment

Ay gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the

net proceeds from disposal and the carmying amount of the item) is recogrsed within other income in

profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits of the

expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred,

e
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Plant and Equipment {Continued)
Daepreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Motor Vehicles - 25% per annum
- Office Equipment - 10% per annum
- Computer Equipment - 20% per annum

Deprecation methods, useful lives and residual values if not insignificant, are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted as appropriate.

There has been a change in depreciation rate compared to last year in order to align the rate with the
parent company which was altered during the financial year of 30 June 2025.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% per annum so as to write off the
depreciable value of the assets over their estimated wseful lives, Amortisation methods, useful lives and
residual values if not insignificant, are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted as appropriate.

There has been a change in amortisation rate compared to last year in order to align the depreciation
policy of the company with that of its parent company which was altered during the financial year of 30
June 2025,

Investmant properties
Recognition and Measurement

Imestrnent properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair values of investment properties are included
in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. Fair values are determined based aon an anmual valuaticn
performed by an accredited extemnal independent valuer, applying a valuation model recommended by
the International Valuation Standards Committes.

As at 30 June 2025, the Company held a portfolio of land located in various regions across Mauritius.
These properties are primarily held for capital appreciation and, in certain cases, form parn of development
projects intended to contribute to the Mauritian econamy.

An entity shall trarsfer a property to, or from, investment properties, when, and only when there is a
change in use A change in use occurs when the propery meets or ceases to meet the definition of
investment properties and there is evidence of the change in use. Transfers between investment
properties, owner-oocupied property and inventery properties are made at the carnying amounts of the
property transferred.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investmaent properties (Continued)
Derecognition
Imvestment properties are derecognised upon disposal or when they are permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from their disposal. The resulting gain or loss, caloulated as

the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in
prafit or loss in the year of derecognition.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Subsidiaries

subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company contrals an entity when it is exposed
to, of has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.

Associates

Assaciates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but have no contral or joint
cortrol, over the financial and operating policies of these entities. Significant influence is presumed to
exist when the Company holds 20% or more of the voting power of anather entity.

Derecognition of Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Irvestments are derecognised when the company loses control over a subsidiary or loses significant
influence over an associate, or when the investment is disposed of.

Upon derecognition, the carrying amount of the investment is removed from the statement of financal
postion, and ary difference between the consideration received and the carying amount is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Imvestments in subsidiaries are measured at fair value through profit or less. Investments in asscciates are
measured at cost less impairment.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investmants in subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

Consolidation of Financial Statements

The Comparny has not consolidated its investment in subsidiaries and not applied the equity method to its

investment in asseciate given that it is exempt from preparing the consolidated financal statements based
an the following:

(a)

(b}

ic)

(cl)

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank of Mauritius, which has been informed about,

and does not object to the following

- the Company naot presenting the consolidated financial statements for its investment in subsidiaries.

- the Company naot applying the equity method for its investments in associates.

The Company’s debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market (a domestic ar foreign

stock exchange ar an aver-the-counter market, including local and regional markets);

The Company did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a securities

commission or other regulatory arganisation, for the purpose of issuing any class of instruments ina
public market; and

The ultimate or any intermediate parent of the Company produces financial statements available for
public use that comply with IFRS Accounting Standards, in which subsidiaries are consolidated or are
measured at FVTPL

Based on the above criteria, the Company is exempted from the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and equity accounting of its associate as the ultimate holding company, the Bank of Mauritius,
prepares the consolidated financal statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and is
avalable for public use, The registered office of the Bank of Mauritius is Sir William Newton Street, Port
Louis, Mauritius. The consolidated financial statements of the Bank of Mauritius are publicly available on
its website [https fwww, bom.mu/].

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financal assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable
amounts are estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the camrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit ("CGU") exceeds its estimated recoverable amount

i
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED])
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGLU is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of meney and the nsks
specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGLL

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses recognised in prior perods are assessed at each balance sheet cdate for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed anly to the
extent that the asset's camying amount does not exceed the carmying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amartisation, if no impairment loss had been recagnised.

Impairment of non-financial assets is assessed at each reporting date for Investments in associates.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives nse to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
ar equity instrument of another entity,

(i} Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Cormpany
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured initially at fair
value, with transaction costs recognised in profit or loss. Financial assets or financial liabilities not at
fair value through profit or less are messured initially at fair value ple transaction costs that are
directly attnbutable to its acquisition or issue.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
() Classification
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value
through profit ar loss (FYTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (PYOCT).

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets which are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis and
which are not dassified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC! a5 described below are measured at
FVTPL. The Company may also irevocably designate financial assets that would otherwise meet the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as at fair value through profit or loss, if deing so would eliminate or significantly reduce an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise anse. These will be subsequently measured at fair value through profit
orf loss with gains and losses recognized in profit or loss.

The Company has not slected to designate equity instruments at FVTPL at the time of initial
recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL include secured redeemable convertible bonds and fived and floating
secured notes, investment in subsidianes, and private equity investments.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL

- the asget is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on speafied dates to cash flows that are salely
payments of principal and interest ("5PPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

This category includes cash and cash equivalents and receivables.

Debt instruments at FVOC|

A debt instrument is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets, to collect contractual
cash flows and =zelling financal assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on
the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments [Continued)

iy Classification (Continued)

Financlal assets (Continued)
Business Modgey gesecement

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolic level, the Company considers all of the relevant information about how the business is
managed, incuding:

- the documented investment strateqy and the execution of this strategy in practice: This includes
whether the investment strategy focuses on earning confractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any
related labilities or expected cash outflows or realising <ash flows through the sale of the assety

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated ard reported to the Company's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that
business model} and how those risks are managed;

- periads, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

- how managers of the businesses are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
vaue of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows callected,

Transfers of finandal assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are

not corsidered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the
assets,

The Company has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents and receivables. These
financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows.

- Other business model These financial assets are managed, and their performance is evaluated, on a
fair value basis in accordance with their documented investment strategy, This indudes financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and irvestment in subsidiaries.

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of meney and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for ather
basic lending risks and costs (e.g, hquidity risk and administrative costs), as well a5 profit margin,
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MNOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

[iiy Classification {Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Assessment of whether contractnal cash flows are sofely payments of principal ard interest (Contined)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the cantractual tenmns

of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this

condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers:

- pontingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension tenms;

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specfied assets (e.g., non- recourse loansk

and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g., periodical reset of interest rates),

[iii} Subsequent measurement

Category

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gains and losses are recognised in the separate statement of
prafit or loss as ‘change in fair value of financial assets at fain
value through profit or loss'  Interest income on such
instruments has been disclosed as a separate line item in the
separate staternent of profit or loss and other comprehensive
inCome,

Financial assets at amortised cost

|These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method. Impairment is recognised)
as 'impairment loss on financial assets at amortised cost’ and is
recognised as a separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition and medification is also
recognised in the separate statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

These financial labilities are subseguently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest methed.

/ ‘
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MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Cantinuead)

Financial assets [Contintued)

(iv) Fairvalue measurement

v}

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advartageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a
Hability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation technigues that
mairmize the use of relevant abservable input and minimize the use of unobzervable input.

The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market particpants would take into
account in pricing a transaction,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting periad during which the change has occurred. The fair value of the financial instruments that
are not traded in active markets is determined by using valuation techniques. The Company has used
its judgement to seled a varety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the reporting cate. Note 24 provicdes cletails of the valuation technigues that the
Company has applied for its financial and non financial assets.

Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial
amount recogrised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impaiment.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allacating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant year. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter perod ta the net
carmrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability at initial recognition.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the future cash flows considenng
all contractual terms of the financial instruments but not the future credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments [Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(wi} Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses ("ECLs") on financial assets

measured at amaortised cost,

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt secunties and bank balances for which cradit risk (i.e the nsk of default accuring over
the expected life of the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Compary’s historical experience and informned

credit assessment and including ferward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default:

- when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse
by the Company to actions such as realising assets (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers amortised cost assets to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of investment grade.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECls that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company is exposed to credit rigk.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments {Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
iwi} Impaiment (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset

Credit-impaired financiol assets

At each reporting date, the Compary assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occumed.

Evidence that a finandal asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the barrower or issuer

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
- the underlying praject is put on hold

- breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the staterment of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets,

Write-aff

Financial Assets are written off either partially or in its entirety when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering them. This accurs when the Company detérmines that the Issuer does not
have the capacity to repay the amount due or the collateral given by the Issuer is not sufficient to
cover the exposure. The write off does not mean that the Compary has forfeited its legal right to
claim the sums due any recovery will be recognised in the statement of profit or loss under
'Impairment charge' as recovenes of advances wrtten off.
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3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Habilities

(vii} Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilites are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
an initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss, Financial liabilities comprise of other
payables. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Other payables
Other payables are initially stated at their fair values and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methed.

Derecognition and modification

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in @ transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ewnership of the financial asset are transferred ar in which
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain contrel of the financial asset,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the camying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allecated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the corsideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss, Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is
recognised as a separate asset or liability. Realised gain is calculated based on proceeds realised on
disposal of investments |ess its cost. The cost is based on an average cost.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which
it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset

i
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3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition and modification (Continued)

Financial linbilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or

liahilities assumed) is recagnised in profit or loss,

The Company recalculates the gross camying amount of financal assets and recognises a madification
gain or loss in profit or loss when the contractual cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified

and the renegotiation or modification does not result in the derecognition of that finandal asset,

The gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated as the present walue of the
renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate

(ix} Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and it
intends either ta settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanaausly.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss and foreign exchange gains and losses,

There is no offsetting of financial instruments applied as on reporting in the separate statement of
financial position.

(¥} Specific instruments

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises current deposits with the Central Bark and petty cash. Cash equivalents are short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The Company bas elected to present the separate
statement of cash flows using the indirect method.
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3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

Stated capital
Qrdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recogrised 85 a deduction from equity,

Income and expenditure Recognition

Incame and expenditure are recogniséd as they are eamed or incurred and are recorded in the financial
statements on an accruals basis to accurately reflect the penod to which they relate.
Irterest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues.

Inventories

Irmventories are valuec at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV)

Cost incurred in bringing each property to its present location and condition are accounted as follows:
Cost of land, construction costs (Planning and design costs, costs of the site preparation, professional fees
for legal services, property transfer taxes, development overheads and other related cost), leasehold rights
and borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The Company uses forward price for the sale of completed inventories in
future years. Cash flows associated with net realisable value are discounted at an appropnate rate to
determine the estimated net realisable value of the inventory in its present location and condition

When an inventory is sold, the carrying amount is recognised as an expense in the period which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of imventones to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net summansed value, is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.
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3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related Parties

Far the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the company if they
have the ahility, directly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise significant influence over the
Company in making financial and operating decisions, of vice versa, or if they and the Company are
subject to common contral, Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the separate statement of financial position based on

current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the nomal operating cyde;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; ar

- cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at |east
twelve months after the reporting penod

A liability is current when:

- it is expected to be settled in normal eperating cycle;

- itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- thereis no uncenditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting pericd.

Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's Sharehalder is recognised as a liakility in the Company's separate
financial staterments in the period in which the dividends are declared.

Contingent liabilities

A cantingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remaote.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the
directors and management o exercise judgements in the process of applying the Accounting policies. It
also requires the use of accounting estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Judgements and estimates are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations and assumptions conceming
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The actual results could, by
definition, therefore, often differ from the related accounting estimates.

Where applicable, the notes to the financial statements set out areas where management has applied a
higher degree of judgerments that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements, or estimations and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear.

Critical judgement areas

Gong concerns

The directors are of the opinion that the Company has adequate resources to continue operations for the
foreseeable future and that it is appropriate to adapt the gaing concern basis in preparing the Compary's

financial statements. The directors have satisfied themselves that the Company is in a sound financal
pogtion and that it has access to sufficient funding facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements.

Cetermination of fuhctiongl cumency

Furctional currency’ is the currency of the primary economic emvironment in which the Company operates.
If indicators of the primary economic emironment are mixed, then management uses its judgement to
determine the functional curmency that most faithfully represents the econemic effect of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.

kanagement has determined that the functional currency of the Company is Mauritian Rupees ["MLUR"L

Estimates and assumptions

The Company carries its investment property at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in
praofit or loss. The Company engaged independent valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 30
June 2025, The waluer used the residual valuation technigue to value the properties. More details are
provided in Mote 8.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)
Determination of fair value of investrnent property fcontinued)

The determination of fair value for investment properties involves significant estimation and judgement. In
the current year, the Company's independent external valuer changed the valuation technique used from
the sales comparison approach to the residual method as the residual method provides for a reliable
method of estimating the eurrent value of a portion of land with development potential. Management has
discussed and approved that the residual methad is more suited for the land cwned by the MIC

The residual method requires significant judgement in assessing:

Development potential and planning status
- Construction and associated development costs
- Expected sales values on completion
- Developer's profit margin will depend on completion of the project including time factor,

Estimation of net realisable value for inventories

Imventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). NRV for land banks is assessed
by reference to markel conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the
Company, based on comparable transactions identified In the same geographical market serving the same
real estate segment.

MRV with respect of Inventories under development is assessed with reference to market prices at the
reporting date for similar completed property, less estimatad costs to complete the development and the
estimated costs necessany to make the sale, taking inte accaunt the time value of maoney, if material.

Fair valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company may, from time to time, hold financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets,
such ag its finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Where valuation techniques are used to
determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by expenenced personnel at the
Company's management. The management's evaluation takes into consideration a business review of the
underlying investments (performance development compared with plans) and the actual and planned
transactions in the investments.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimates and assumptions {Continued)

Fair valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

The detemnination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there iz ho observable market

price recuires the wse of valuation techniques as described in MNote 24.

For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less
objective, and requires varying degrees of estimation depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of

market factors, pricing assumptions and other nsks affecting the specific instrument.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and wolume to provide pricing information on an ongeing basis. The

Company measures instruments quoted in an active market at a exercise price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technigque incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricng a
transaction.

Assat lives and residual values

Plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values, where
appropriate, The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annwally and may vary
depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, facters such as technological innovation,
product life cycles and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments
corsider isswes such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal
values. Consideration is also given to the extent of current profits and losses on the disposal of similar
assets,
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Estimates and assumptions {Continued)
Depreciation palicies

Plant and equipment are depreciated to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The residual
value of an asset is the estimated net amount that the Company would currently obtain from the disposal
of the asset, if the asset were already of the age and in condition expected at the end of its useful life. The
directors therefore make estimates based on historical experience and use best judgement to assess the

useful lives of assets and to forecast the expected residual values of the asset at the end of their expected
useful lives.

Fair value of investment in subsidiaries not quoted in an active market

The fair value of securities not quoted in an active market may be detéermined by the Company using
valuation techniques including third party values, eamings, net asset value or discounted cash flows,
whichever is considered to be appropriate. The Company would exercise judgement and estimates on the
quantity and quality of pricing sources used, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value if fimancial instruments. This results in management exerdsing significant asumption
on the unobservable inputs being used for fair valuation. Refer to Note 9.

Impairment of investment in associates

Irvestment in assodates are reviewed for impairment whenever there is an impairment indication. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carmying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Refer to
MNote 10

5. NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS

(a) Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting
period

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Classification of Uabilities as Cument or Mon-current Marrow-scope amendments to [AS 1 to clarify
how to classify debt and other liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments have no impact
an the Company's financial statements.

Mon-curent Liabilities with Covenants: Subsequent to the release of amendments to A5 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current, the ASE amended 1AS 1 further in October
2022 If an entity's fight to defer is subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, such
conditions affect whether that nght exists at the end of the reporting period, if the entity is required
to comply with the condition on or before the end of the reporting period and not if the entity is
required to comply with the conditions after the reporting period. The amendments also provide
clarification on the meaning of ‘settlement’ for the purpese of cassifying a liability as current or non-
current. The amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

i
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5. NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(k)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting
period (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback: The amendment clarifies how a seller-lessee subsequently
measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for
a5 a sale. The amendments have no impact an the Company's financial staterments.

WAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows & IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Supplier Finance Arangements: The amendments add disclosure requirements, and 'signpasts’ within
existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities to provide qualitative and quantitative information
about supplier finance arrangements. The amendments have ne impact en the Company's financial
statements,

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet

Certain standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations have been issued that are
mandatory for accounting penods beginning on or after July 1, 2025 or later periads, but which the
Company has not early adopted.

At the reporting date of these financal statements. the following were in issue but not vet effective;

Effective date farmuary 72025

1AS 21 The Effects of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Lack of Exchangeability; The amendments conmtain guidance to specfy when a curency is
exchangeable and how to determine the exchange rate when it is not.

Effective dote Jomuary 1, 2026

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments & IFRS T Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments; The amendments clanfy that a financial
liability is derecognised on the ‘settlerment date’ and intreduce an accounting policy choice to
derecagnise financial liabilities settled using an electronic payment system before the settlement date.
Orther clarifications include the dassification of financial assets with ESG linked features via additional
guidance on the assessment of contingent features. Clanfications have been made to non-recourse
loars and contractually linked instruments. Also, additional disclosures have been introduced for
financial instruments with contingent features and equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Contracts Referencing Mature-dependent Electricity: The amendments clarify how IFRS 9 should be
applied to power purchase agreements with specific characteristics. The amendments include
clarification an the application of the ‘cwn-use’ requirements and permitting hedge accounting if
these contracts are used as hedging instruments, Mew disclosure requirements have also been
incduded to enable investors to understand the effect of these contracts on a company's finandal
performance and cash flows
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5. NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS (CONTINUED)

{b) Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet
effective (Continued)
Effective date Janwary 1, 2027
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Staternents
Presentation and disdosure in financal staternents: IFRS 18 infroduces new requirements on
presentation within the statement of profit or less, including specified totals and subtotals presented
within the statement of profit or logs within one of the following five categories — operating, investing,
financing, income taxes, and discontinued operations. It also requires disclosure of management-
defined performance measures and includes new requirements for aggregation and disaggregation of
finarcial information based on the identified ‘roles’ of the primany financial statements and the notes.
In addition, it brings about consequential amendments to other accounting standards, This standard
replaces |AS 1 - Presentation of Finandial Statements.

Effective date fanuwary 1. 2027

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability Disclosures: IFRS 19 is @ non-mandatory standard, It
specifies the disclosure requirements that eligible subsidianes are permitted to apply instead of the
disclosure requirements in other IFRS accounting standards. It allows eligible entities to benefit from
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying the recognition, measurement and presentation
reguirements in other IFRS Accounting Standards. Subsidiaries are eligible wo apply IFRS 19 if they do
not have public accountability and their parent, intermediate parent or ultimate parent company
produces consolidated financial statements available for public use that comply with IFRS Accounting
Standards

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financal Statements

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 and 1AS 28). Narrow scope amendment address an acknowledged inconsstency between the
requirements in IFRS 10 and those in 145 28 {2011}, in dealing with the sale or contnbution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

IAS 28 Investments in Asseciates and Joint Ventures

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Assedate or Joint Venture [Amendments to
[FRS 10 and |AS 28): Marrow scope amendment to address an acknowledged inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in AS 28 (2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of
acsets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

Where relevant, the Company is still evaluating the effect of these Standards, Amendments to
published Standards and Interpretaticns issued, but not yet effective, on the presentation of its

financial statements.
/
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6. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office Computer Motor
equipment  equipment  Vehicles
MUR OO0 NMUR OO0 MUR"000 MUR OO0

Total

COST

At 01 July 2022 4 1,948 3775 7127
Additions dunng the year B22 4515 1425 B 562
At 30 June 2024 626 8463 5200 14289
At 01 July 2024 626 8,463 5,200 14,289
Additions during the year . 519 . 519
Write off = (10} = (19)
At 30 June 2025 626 B 972 5,200 14,798
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At a1 July 2023 1 1,750 2020 47T
Charge for the year a2 1,538 1,081 2671
At 30 June 2024 53 1,288 4101 T442
At01 July 2024 53 3,288 4,101 T.442
Charge for the year 63 1,787 356 2,206
At 30 June 2025 116 5,075 4,457 9,648
NET BOOK VALUE

At 30 June 2025 510 3,897 743 5150

At 30 June 2024 573 5175 1,099 6847
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7. INTAMGIELE ASSETS Computer
Software
COsT MUR D00
At 20 Jume 2023 439
Additions during the year 1,439
A1 20 June 024 1,878
At 30 June 2024 1,878
Additions during the year -
At 30 lune 2025 ._‘ﬂ
ACCUMULATED
At 30 dune 2023 146
Change during the year 294
At 30 June 2024 440
At 01 July 2024 440
Charge for the year ATE
At 30 lune 2025 816
NET BOOK VALUE
At 30 June 2025 'IEqEE
At 20 June 2024 'IIHE
& INVESTMEMNT PROPERTIES A0-Jun-25 30-lun-24
MUR'0DO MLIR 00
Fair value modal
At stark of vear 4,992,573 4,000,925
Additions - Capital expenditura - 75,000
Trarsfer to Inventaries (Maote 12) {1,181,400) -
Dispasal - [16,527)
Charge in fair value 279,527 107,175
At end af year 090, 700 Gal 573
Hierarchy Classification Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
30 June 2025 MUR"'O0D0 MUR 000 MUR"QOD0 MURDDD
Land - - 4,000,700 4,090,700
= - 4,090, 700 4,050, 700
Lenvel 1 Lewva| 2 Lewvel 3 Total
30 June 2024 MURD00 MUR'000 MU RD0D rALIR 000
Land - - 44992573 4952 573
- - 44992 573 982 573
Valuation process

The Company's management cversess the valuation process, ensuning that valuatiors are performed by quallfied
external valuers. The waluer applies recognhlsed valuation techniques conslstent with International Yaluathon
standards. Managenent reviews the valuation reports, Inputs, and assurmptions 1o ensure they reflect the ourrent
rarket environment and the specific charactenstics of the propertles,

The valuation is reviewed annually or mare frequenth I significant changes in market conditions accur, Any changes
in valuation technigues or significant assumptions are discussed and approved by senior management

Valuation technique and assumplions

The Imvestrent properties were valued an 30 June 2025 by a qualifled independent prafessional valuer, BREA Ltd, a
Registered Valuer having relevant experience af the lecation and category of the Investment properties belng
valued. The parcels of land included in the financial statements have been valued w=ing the Residual fMethod of
Valuation. This represents a change from the pricr year, where Elevante Property Services Ltd used the Sales

Comparison Appreach. The residual method provides for a reliable method of estimating the current value of a
portion of land with development potential
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B. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (COMTINUED)

Valuation technique and assumpticns {continued)

The residual method estimates fair walue & based on the expected gross development walue of the completed
property, less estimated construction costs, professional fees, financing costs, and a developer's profit margin. The
impact of the change is reflected in the fair value moverment recegnised in prefit or loss for the year

The residual method of valuation have resulted in-an increase of MUR 279.5 millllon in the fair value of the camying
value of inkestment propety a5 at 30 June 2025

The Valuer has taken into consideration the recent publication of maps showing sensitive areas from the Land
Dralnage Autharty (LD&). Hewever, owding Ba the novelty of the publicatian of such maps, the impact an demand far
properties found within these zones, and therefore an their values, i= still undear at this stage. The discretionary
nature of the planning system magnifies the subjectivity of the impact of these LO& maps on value: Glven the
unknown future impact these LDA maps might have on the real estate market, no allowance an the valuation was
cansidered in the current year valuation

valuation 1 T ;
For the financlal vear, June 30, 2025 and 2024, the significant unobservabde input for the valuation of fand s as

foll oees:
Significant uncobservable input Range of unobservable
Fair walue hierarchy hierarchy imput MUR M (Fair Value)
2024
| 5%
Price per Tose (MUR) "”:j;“;
Freeheld land Lewvel 3 Tisereess Bk
1,932 - 12221
[249.6)

Significant increase f{decrease) in the abowe unobservable inputs in isolation would esult in a significant higher f
(lower) falr value,

2025

For the financial year June 30, 2025, the significant unobsernvable input for the valuation of land are as follows:
Significant

Unobservable Rangs

inputs

selling Rate {MUR/ toisa) 3,024 - 31 328

Development Costs (MUR M) 51 -1,214

Discount Rate {5 7%

significant increase Adecrease) in selling rate In isclatian would result ina skanificantly higher ¢ lowen falr value

Significant increasef{decrease) in development costs and discount rate in isclation would result ina significanthy
(lowerhigher falr value,

The following table shows the significant unobservable inputs used and the sensitivity of these inputs on the fair
walie:

Increase of Decrease of
Significant 5% 5%
Unohservable MUR M MUR M (Fair
inputs {Fair Value} Value)
Selling Rate (MUR/toise) 433.1 (433.1)
Development Costs (MUR M) (189.2] 1892

Discount Rate (3 {110) 1134
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (COMNTINUED)

Classification of sgrioultural Land

Az at 30 June 2025, the Company holds parcels of agricultural land as part of its investment property partfalio. While
cerfain areas are currently used fior agricuttural purposes, such use i considered inclidental to the prircipal intertion
of holding the land for capital appreciation and future dewelopment.

In line with the reqguirements of 1A% 40 - Investment Property, the land contimees to be dassified as invesbment
property, as the agricultural activities do not represent the primary purpose or function of the asset.

Highest and Best use assessment

Certain parcels of land classified as rvestment property are currently used for low-intensity agriuftuml purpases,
However, the Campany’s independent (BREA Ltd) valuatian determined that the highest and best use of these assets
i= for residential and commercial development

The difference between the current use and the highest and best use reflects the Company's kong-term strateqy to
maximize the value of these assets through future develapment. Development activitkes will be undertaken when
conditions such & reguiatory approvals and market demand are availabie

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Fair value model MUR'000 WMUR'D00
At start of year 7441, 265 4564122
Adekitions - 2388226
Dlsposal (719, T68)
Trarsfer from Subsidiary to asscciate {1,678 462)

Change in fair value 15,357 78,217

A end of year 5,058,392 7441265

Details of the subsidiary are as follows,

Type of
Marre aff subsidiany shares Principal place of business Percentage of equity hekd
30-Jun-25 A0-Jun-24
MIC Smart Sty Ltd Equity Mauritius 100% 1005
EastCoast Hotel Investment Lid
Equity 49%* 7%

(see Maote 10) Maurtiis

The Campany acquired 100% of the shares and woting interests in MIC Smart Clty Lid during the year ended 30 June
2021 The status of Eastcoast Hotel Irvestment Lid changed from sub<idiary to associate following a disposal of 2 1%
in Movernber 2024

PIC Smart City Lid {the “Subsidiary”) is a private company incorporated and domicled in Mawritius. The subsidiany is
imvolved in real estate and property development in the context of the smart city scheme,
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9.

INVESTMENT IM SUBSIDIARIES (COMTINUWEL)

* Dunng the year, the Company sold a 21% ownership stake in EastCoast Hotel Investment Ltd, reducing its halding
fram 70% 1o 49%. A5 a result of lasing controd, EastCoaast Hotel Investment Ltd was reclassified from a subsidiany to

an asscclate as of 08 Movember 2024, an amount of MUR 1678 milllon was derecognised In Investment Ik
subsidiaries and an amount of MUR 1 &85 milion was recognized in investment in associates resulting in a gain on

disposal of MUR 2.9 millich

The investment properties of the subsidiary, MIC Smart City Lid, were valued on 30 June 2025 by BREA Lid, The
Company valued the investment in subsidiany using the net asset waluation method.

Yaluation Process

The Company values its irvestment in its sole subsidiany at fair value through profit or kss using the Met Aszset Value
(MaY method (2024: NAY except for EastCoast Hotel investment Lid). This method determines fair value based on
the subsidiary’s underlying as=ets and liabilities, adjusted to their fair values as apprepriate. Fair value of EastCoast
Hotel Investment Ltd was based aon market value af a recent ransaction,

fanagement reviews the subsidiary's financial position as at the reporting date, asses=as the carnring amounts of its
assets and liahbilities, and makes neceszary fair value adjustments. The waluation & updated annually or maore
frequently [f significant changes ocour in the subsidiary’s financial condition ar market environment.

Lavel 1 Laval 2 Level 3 Total

30 June 2025 MURDD MURQDO MUR OO0 MUR0DD
Investment in subsidiaries - - 5,058,392 5058392
- - 5,058 392 5058392

Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

50 June 2024 MLIR Q00 RALIR 000 MALIRO00 rALR 000
Imvestment in subsidiaries - - TA41 265 7441, 265
= - 7441, 265 7,441,265

There were no transfers between the levels during the year

Mare details on the valuation technique, assumptions, inputs and data used have baen included in Mokbe 24,

100 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

(@) Details of the associate are as follows: A0-Jun-25 A0-lun-24
M LR 000 RLIR'000

At start of vear 23,221,118 25,000 000
Trarsfer from subsidiary (Mote 9] 1,685,374 =
Imparment losses {4,169 812) 11,778,882)

AL el of year 20,736,680  23221,118
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MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
10, INVESTMENT IM ASSOCIATES (COMNTIMNUED)

(@) Details of the associate are a3 follows: (continued)

Type of
Hame of associate shares Principal place of business Percentage of equity held
A0-Jun-25 A0-lur-24
Airpart Holdings Limited {4HL) Ecpulty kit A0, A9,
EastCoast Hotel Investment Ltd  Equity Mauritius 495 T

ikl The Imvestment 0 associate B accounted farat cost less impalment,

ic] * Dwring the year, the Company lost control over EastCoast Hobel Investment Litd fiodlowing the partial disposal
of its equity interest. As-a result, EastCoast Hotel fwestment Ltd was reclassified from a subsidiary to an
associate in accordance with applicable accounting standards (refer Mabe 93,

id] The recowerable amount was determined to be MUR 191 billion, based on Walue In Use (*WU®)], using
discounted cash flow bechnigue. This resulted in the recognition of an impairment loss of MUR 4.1 billon in the
staterment of profit or koss for the year ended 30 June 2025 due to performance of the underlying investee
companies AHL The cash flows of the underling investee companies 4HL have been estimated and discounted
using a discount rate of 9% to 12.47% (2024. 10.43%-17.78%).

The following key assumptions were applied:
EBITDA: The budgeted EBITDA for a perkod of five {5 vears was used based on past esperence and
management’s future expectations of business performance.

Terminal groweth rate: & terminal growth rate of 3% (2024: 3%) was applied. The rate considered steady state of
growvth rates af the Mauntian ecananmy,

Discount rate: Discount rates used reflect both time value of maoney and other specific risks relating to the
ety wene used,

Summarized information extracted from the unaudited financial statements of the associates as at 30 June 2025 are

given below:
EastCoast
Hotel
Alrport Holdings Limited  Investment
30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-25
RALIR DD MALIR 00D MUR 00D
Current assets 16,307,306 13,759,057 153,542
Man-current assets 73,172,374 82542398 3,200,947
Current liakilities 23,213,581 20,357 946 16,448
Man-cument liabilities 26,761,924 28172938 529,299
ket aszets 39,504,175 477057 2,808,742
Revenue 37,930,368 3T, 452,005 179,346

Total comprehensive income (B,266,3096) ([27.223054) 638213
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MOTES TO THE SEFARATE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2025

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (FVTPL)

Financla assets include a range of investrments held by the company, camprising bonds and notes nvestreents In
listed and unlisted equity Irstruments, as well &= irterests in private equity funds,
Festated
A0-Jun-25 30-Jup-24
MUR 00D RALIR GO0

Balace at start 20,252,195 17357776
Addition 1.317 666 2 B45 000
Redemptions and disposal during the year (1,467,000] (330,000
interest receivabile 942 208 e 506
interest received (966,486) (B57,538
Retranslation loss (5,501] :
Changes In Falr Walue (3,811,729) 326 661
Balance at end 16,261,353 20252195

(I} INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES

A0=-Jun-25
Fair value model MUR0Q0
At start of year .
Additions 204,94099
Change In fair value (68.913)
At end of vear 226,086
Detadls of the Secunties are a3 follows:

Fair Value

Name of securities Chwnership Level (WILIR " Oy IFRS 13 Lewel
Emtal Lkd (Listed) Eailh ) FWTPL 236,086 Lewved 1
Merlo Park Lt < 20 FWTPL E Lewvel 3

Durihg the year, the Company acquired equity investments In twe companies Both investments represent haldings
of less than 20%, and the Company does not hawe significant influence owver either entity. These investments ane
therefore classitied as financial assets at far value through profit or loss (FYTPL) in accondance with IFRS % Financial
InSEImEn 1%
Thie Investments conalst of!

a) One quoted equity irvestment listed on the stock exchange of Maurithis, and

B} Cne unguaoted equity investment in a private company.

Valuation and Measurement
a) The quoted invwestment is valued using the dosing market price at the reporting date [Level 1 input).
k) The unquaoted investrent & valued using the Net Asser Value (MNav) method (Level 3)

Fair Value Mowvements
All changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss For the year ended 30 Juna 2025, the Company recognised a
net falr value loss of MUR 68,9 million.

(i} INVESTMENTS IN PRIVATE EQUITY FUNDS

30-Jun-25
Fair value model MUR'DO0
At start of year .
Aglchiticns 192,667
Foreign exchangs less on retranslation (5.501)
Change in fair value (24.487)
At end of vear 152,679
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11. ANANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUWGH FROFIT OR LOSS (FYTPL) (CONTINUED)

(i} INVESTMENTS IM PRIVATE EQUITY FUNDS (COMTIMUED)
Details of the imvestment are as follows

Fuirsd Ma e Falir Value Functional Valuation Fair Valus
{MUR" 000) Currency Method Level
Fund 1 95057 UsD WA Level 3
Fund 2 17 ush A Lewel 3
Fund 3 57,605 IS0 A Level 3

The Campany has Investments in three USD-denominated private equity funds managed by independent General
Fartriers {GPs). These imestrents form part of the Company's akemative imestment strategy almed at ong-tem
capital appreciation

The Company hokds ron-controliing, passive nierests in these funds nd does nat partdcipate in their opeational or
imeestiment decision-making, Accordingly, the imvestments are dassified as financial assets ot fair value through
prestit ar kagss [FYTPL) i aceordance with IFRS 9 Flnanclal lretrurments.

Valuation

The falr values of the fund interests are based on the Met Assst Value (NAV) provided by the respective General
Partners at the reporting date. As these valuations rely on uncbservable inputs and are not based on market quoted
prices, the investments are classified as Level 3 under the IFRS 13 falr value hierarchy,

/ ‘

(i) BOMNDS AND MOTES Restated
30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24
MUR'DOO RALIR "0
{a) CONVERTIBLE BOMNDS
At start of the year 19,946, 258 17, 105 405
Additions during the year TEO, QDD 2,845 000
Redemptions during the year (1,417,000) 1330,000)
interest recelvable 922,507 847 922
Inberest recelvwed (943, 773) {845, 442]
Change in fairvalue {3.703,116) 323 383
At end of year 15,579,880 15,546 hed
(b} FIXED RATE SECURED MOTES
At start of the year 252,409 25237
Interest recelvable 12,500 12,534
Interest received (12,500) (12.496]
Charge in fairvalua {135) =
At end af year 252,274 252 4
) FLOATING RATE SECURED NOTES
At skart of the year 53,518 -
Additions during the year S0, 000 G0, ()
Redemption during the year (50, e =
interest receivable 7.2M 240
Inferest recelved {5, 207) -
Charge in falr value {3,078) 3278
At end of wear 50,434 53518
TOTAL 15,882 588 52 195
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11. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (FVTPL) (CONTINUED)
{iii) BONDS AND MOTES (CONTINUED)

12,

() FLOATING SECURED NOTES (CONTINUED)

The Compamy has invested in secured redeemable conwertible bonds of systemically large, impaortant and viable
campanies in Mauritius, The carving amount at 30 June 2025 reflects the fair value of the redeemalbsle convertible
bonds and floating secured notes which have been estimated using a scenario based valation model while the fair
value of the fized secured notes i derived using the market approach,

The wenarlo-based valuatian madel has resulted in & decrease of MUR 3,703 milllon |n the falr valie of the secuned
redeemable convertible bonds and floating secured notes as at 30 June 2025, The assumptions wused In the model

are based on the expecied standard deviation of the issuers’ performance, [ssuer specific credit spreads and the
latest avallable book equity and total lability of the Issuers a5 af 30 June 2025

The investrment held in fixed secuned notes |s guated i an active markek The falr value of quoted securities is based
on published market prices,

The wvaluation model applied to the Bonds (except for defaulted bonds) does not incorporate the effect of callateral
or ather credit enhancerments that may b in place. The carrying amcunt of the Bonds is deemed to approximate
the best estimate of the MICs maximum credit exposure as M the feporting date

Defanlted Bonds

Aithough debt Instruments messured at Falr Value Threugh Profit or Loss (PYTPL) are net subject to the recegnition
of expected credit losses [ECL) under IFRS 2, the company classifies these instrumients into Stages 1 to 3 for intemal
credit risk monitoring and requlatory disclosure purposes, in line with Section 36 of the Bank of Mauritius Guideline
on Provisianing and wite-off of Credit Exposures, The Campany continues fo manitar all credit exposures closely
and updates staging classification at each reporting dates, During the vear ended 30 June 2025, certain bonds under
stage 3 weere wiltten down 0o a falr value of nll The lssuers of these bands defaulted on their obligations and have
mob esponded o reguests for decumentation of setlement amangements. Baed on the assesment of
recoverability, the fair value of these instruments was written down to zero. These losses were recognised in profit or
loss. Mare details on the valuation technique, assumptions, inputs and data used have been included in MNote 24,

INVEMTORIES

Dwring the year ended 20 June 2025, the Company frarsferred portions of land from Imeestment Properties to
Inventanes, reflecting a change in intended use from holding for capital appreciation to active development far sale.
The land was previously claz=ified as investment properties held for capital appredation. The Company commanoed
development activities on these parcels, Incuming directly attributable costs that have been capltalised as part of
imvertary, Priar ta the transfer from Investment properties to Inventory properties these land parcel were valued
uszing the Sales Comparison Approach.

The land weas transferred at It fair value of MUR 1,787 milllon on 1 July 2024 which becamse its deemed cost under
145 2 In accordance with 185 40 Investment Property, Following the transfer, inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realisable value, In accordance with 145 2 — Inventaries, Cost Includes the camylng amaunt at 1 July
2024 and development cost incurred durimg the vear in bringing the inventones o its current conditian and

lacatian
L1

MURD00

Carmying amaount of land transferred from investment properties to inventories (Mote 8) 1,181,400
Capitalised development costs during the vear 78,798
Total as at 30 June 2025 1,260, 198
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13. RENTAL DEPOSIT

From year ended 30 June 2023, a rental deposit of MUR 1,344,000 was paid to United Docks Properties Ltd in view
of the relocation of the Company to the Docks 2. In addition, as at 30 June 2024, the Company had recognised a
rental deposit of MUR 500,000 in respect of 3 lease agreement for a property intended for future development at
Cote d'Or Mauritius.

Gwring the year ended 30 June 2025, the Company paid an additional rental deposit of MUR 5644113 relating to

the Cite d'Or lease. However, following a strategic reassessment, the Company deckled to terminate the lease
agreement before development activities commenced.

In accaordance with the termsz of the lease, the full deposit of MUR 6,144,113 is non-refundable. As a result, the
Company has written off the total amount to profit or kss under general expendiiune MNote 21).

14. DTHER RECEIVABLES AMD PREPAYMEMTS
30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24
MUR'ODD MLR000

Recelvables from its subsidiary (MIC Smart City Lid)

(Note 25 12,662 20,491
Other Receivables 49
Prepayments 536

13,247 20,49

Recelvables from related parties are Interest free, unsecured and do not have 3 fixed repayment terme The maxinmum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date s the carmying value of the receivable mentioned abowve The cammying
value of ather receivabiles and receivables from its subs=idiary approximates its fair value

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits held with the central Bank of Maurtius,
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. &s at 30 June
2025 cash and cash eguivalents were held in the following currencies:

A0-Juri-25 30-Jur-24
MLR DD MURTO0

hauritian Rupea {MUR) 27,345,162 26,140,655
Eura [ELIR) 826,516 05,157
United States Dollar (USDY 38,783 T

ZB,210,46T  I6445,813

The Company maintains it bank accounts with its holding Company, the Bank of Mauntius, which |5 also the Central
Bank of Mauritius.

16, OTHER PAYABLES A0-Jun-25 0-lun-24
MUR'GO0D0 RALIR'000
Professional and legal costs accrued 18,587 6,960
Cane management fees pavabile 16,587 5,022
Other accrualks 5989 5,137
-11I 163 1TI1 19

The camying ameunts of sther payables approsimate their fair values
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17, STATED CAPITAL & RESERVES
A. STATED CAPITAL Mo of shares
30-Jun-25  30-Jun-24 A0-Jun-25 Al-Jun-24
MUR'000 KUR000
Ordinary shares
Avthorised, issued ahd fully patld tp
Al start of the year 8,100,000 8100000 BL000.000  &1,030,000
At end of year 8,100,000 B 100,000  §1,000,000 81,000,000

The halder of ardinary shares is entitled to receve dividends as declared from time 1o time ard s entitled to
one wote per share at meetings of the Company. On winding up, the halder of an ordinary share will be entitled
to surplus on assets. The company's issued shares are of no par value.

B. RESERVES 30-Jun-25 A0-lun-24

MUR GO0 FALIR 000
Balance at start 1,435,564 429,984
Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL (3.B11,729) 126,661
Movement In revaluation resene {Investment properties) 279,527 107,175
Maovement In Talr valuation reserve {Investment in subsidliang 15,357 78,917
Transfer from revaluation reserve to retained eamings - (¥, 73]
Balance at end {2,081, 287) 1,435,564

The Company measures all [ts imsestrents at falr value through profit or loss (FYTPL) In accordance with IFRS 2
Financlal Instruments Consequently, all gains and losses arlsing from changes n the fair value of these
irvestments are recognised directly [n inoome staterment.

While IFRS Acoounting Standards mandates separate reserves presentation for the Statement of Changes In
Eqquity, the above amounts do not represent compenents of other comprehensive incame. Instead, separate falr
value change presamtation for each of the abowe financial and non financial assets has been disclosed by
management for improved menitoring of fair value changes.

Accordingly, the above resenves disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity forms part of retained eamings
for accounting and presentation purposes.

18, INTEREST INCOME ON BOMNDS AND MOTES

Cwring the year, the Company earned interest income from its investments in redeemable conwvertible secured
bonds, fixed secured notes, and floating secured notes, These financial Instruments are classified as financlal assets
at falr value through profit or loss in accardance with IFRS 9, Interest income from these instruments & recognised in
Incorme stabement a5 i acorues, based on the confraciual interest @ates,
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18, INTEREST INCOME OM BOMDS AND MOTES (CONTINUED)
The breakdown of Interest income for the year 15 as fellows Restated

19,

- Juin-25 Ac-dun-24

MR 000 MILIRDO0
Interest Income on redeemable

convertible secuned bonds eS0T R RS
Interest Income an fixed secuned notes 12,500 12,534
Interest Inoame an floating secued 7201 240
Total Intersst Income on Bond: and Notes 942 208 H60,696

(A) FRONT-EMD, LEGAL AND REGISTRATIOM FEES
30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

KMUR"00D WMIURO00

Front-end fees 5,500 14,800
Legal fees 3,393 4,216
Registration fees 283 BET

9,176 19,683

Frant-end fee represents the amount pald by the lssuer of secured redeemable corvertible bands and fixed secured
notes to the Company. Legal and registration fess include amounts paid by the isseer of secured redeemahble
convertible bonds and fixed secured notes to the Company in connection with the preparation, negatiation, printing
and execution of the fransaction agreemenits.

(B} PROFESSIONAL, LEGAL AND

S S—, 30-Jun-25 3A0-Jun-24
MUR D00 LI Ralili]
Legal costs 2,595 6,493
Registration costs 1,096 Q23
Professional costs B093 34,612
11,785 42028
Z0. OTHER INCOME 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24
MUR00D MLIRQ00
Sugarcane proceeds 36,753 16,844
Cther miscellaneaus Incarme 2118 10,394
Equalisation of Investment In funds 187 -
Gain on disposal {Make 9) 6,912 -
Fareign exchange gain 39,530 -
85,500 25242
21. GEMERAL EXPENDITURE 30-Jun-25 20-Jun-24
MUR Q0D MLIRQ0D
audit fees 18,002 403
Insurance fees 178 5,959
Carmmunication and advertising fees 1,902 3,405
Farelgn exchange loss - 76,054
Crther expenses 23,364 18,574
Land Management faes &T0 -
Rental deposit forfelted (MNote 13) 6,144 -
571,260
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Z2. DIRECTORS" FEES 30-Jun-25 30-Jur-24
MUR"OOD PALR Q00
Chairperson 2372 4,108
Cither directors 4 285 4,015
Qther Committess related cost B30 1080
T.48T 9.203
23, COMMITMENTS

Az at 30 June 2025 commitments net atherwise provided for in the financial statements amount o MUR 420 million
and USD 23 milllen (2024 MUR 2,830 million for bandsl which represent amounts appraved for bond subscriptions
and committed amounts to be invested into funds, which have notyet been dibursed respectively,

24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

A. Financial rizk factors

The Company's activities expase it to a varety of financlal risks: market risk (including interest rate, currency risk and
price risk), credit risk, concentration risk and hiquidity riske This note presents information about the Company's
exposure to each of the said risks, the Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing
risk, and the Company's management of capital. The Company's risk & managed at the level of the Board of
Directors and focuzes on secunng the Company’s shart to medium term cash flows by minimising the exposure of
financial risks. The Company's investments are managed to stimulate the growth and diversification of the economy
and create jobs for the people & well as to generate wealth for future generations of Mauritians. Further
guantitative disclosures are included throughcut these financial statements.

The owerall objective of the Board E to set polkles that seek to reduce risk as fal as possible without unduly
affecting the Company’s competitiveness and fexibality.

{0y Market sk

Market risk iz the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company's income or the value of its heldings of financial inskruments. The Board of Directors has averall
responsibility for the establishiment and oversight of the Company's rsk management framework. The
Company's risk management polides areestablished to dentify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
et appropriate meazures and contrals and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk managerment policies
angd systems are reviewed regularty to reflect changes in market conditions and in the Company's activities, The
Gbjective of markel rgk management & (o manage and controd market nisk xposunes within aceptable
parameters, while gptimising the returm.

The Company’s exposure to the various types of riks assoclated to its activity and finan<lal instrurnents are
detailed below.
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Z4. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (COMNTINUED)
A. Financial risk factors {Continued)
iy Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate rsk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the Falr
vahues of financlal Instruments, The Company's income and operating cash are dependent an <hanges In
interest rates as the Company has both fiked rate and floating rate interest bearing financial assets. The interest
Bearing Mauritian rupes denaminated asels eam beth fixed and floating interest at rates ranging from 3% p.a,
to 7.9% pa The Compames policy 5 to ensure that there i3 a balarced combination of both fixed rate and
floating rabes instruments entered inta,

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
vanatses hekl constant, of the Company's profitlcss] before faxation (through the Impact of varable rate
B rrening)

“arious scenarios are run taking into consideration refinancing and renewal of the existing positions. Based on
the simulatiors performed, the sensitivity of the profit before tax to a reasonably possibde change in interest
rate of +100 or -100 basis points, with all ether variables held constant is shown below,

These changes are conzidered to be ressonably possible based on historical observatiors of cument market

conditions.
Change in
Interest rate
(Basks Effect on
points) profit or loss
2025 MUR"'ODO
Bonds and Motes 100 132 880

{100 {132 E80)

A 100 bazie point decreaze in inkerest rates would reduce profit by approsimately MUR 1328 millicn, while a
100 Basis point Increase in interest rates would increase profit by the same amount,

Bond price risk

Band price risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in fair values of financal assets at FYTPL as the result of
changes In the value of Individual bends The bond price risk exposure anses from the Company's Investments
in secured redeemable convertible bonds The Company's paolicy is to manage bond price risk through selection
of securitles and other financlal Imstruments within the specified limits set by its imestment palicy
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (COMTIMUED)
A, Financial rizk factors (Continued)
(17 Market risk (Continued)

Bond price risk [Continued)
Sensitivity analysis - Change in yield

The next table summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the bond value on the Company's results far
the year.

The analysis is based on the assumption that the yield is increased/decreased by 1%, with all other variables
held constant considering the economic emvironment in which the Company cperates. Sensitivity rates are
derived from historkcal obsenations as at 30 June 2024 and 2025,

Change in
yield Effect on

(Basis profit or loss
points) and equity

2025 MUR OO0

Bonds and Motes 100 [(FEEA03)
{100 06272

2024

Bonds and Motes 100 33466

{100 T2 1,599

A 100 basls point decrease In yield would increase the fair value of the bend potfollo by approximately MUR
4062 million (2024: MUR 7218 million), while a 100 basis paoint increase in yield would decrease the fair value
by approximately MUR 2884 milllon (2024; MUR 334 million)

Forelgn Currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from cash and bank balances held in cumencies other
than its functional currency. These balances are subject to exchange rate flucustions. Management monitars
foreign currency exposures and takes appropriate measures to minimise potential impacts,
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24, FINAMCIAL RISKE MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

A. Flinancial Hak fectors (Contfued)

L

Markat rish (Continuad)
Foreign Currency risk [Continued)

The Company is expozed to foregn currency risk primarily through:
- Cash and bank balances held in USD and Euros (EUR),

The Company's functicnal and presentation cumrency is the Mawitian Rupss (MUR), &z a result, fuchiations in

farelgn euchange rates, particularly USDYMUR and ELIRSMMUR, can affect the carndng value of thess financial
axsets when retranslabed at the reporting date,

The Carmpany held the fallewing farelgn cumency denominated financial assels:

usp EUR MUR
2025 MUR' 000 MR D00 MUR' 000
Cash and cash equivalent 38,789 B2E 516 27345162
2024
Lash and cash equivalent > 05157 26, 140656
Sensitivity analysis

The Company holds & bank account n Buro and United States Dolar with its holding Company, the Bank of
Mauritive, Consequerthy, the Company is exposed Bo risks that the exchange rate of the Mauritius Rupee
relative to the Euro and Unlted States Dollar may change in & manner which has an adverse effect on the
reported value of the Company's assets.

The table below indicates the approximate change in the profit and eguity in response o reasonable possible
changes in the foreign exchangs ates to which the Compary has gignificant exposure at the reporting date
The Company is mainky expesed to volatility in Euro and Liniked States Collar

A 5% (2024 5%) increase and decrease in the MUR against the relevant foreign currency is the sersitivity rate
used wrhen reporting foreign cumercy risk internally to management and represents maragement’s assessment
af the reasonably possible change in fareign exchange rates.

lhe sansitwvity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had ocouned
at the reporting date and had been applied to the Company’s exposure to ourrency risk for financizl
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in parfbicular nterest rates, remain constant.
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MAURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2025

24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
A. Financial risk factors {Continued)
Other Price
Market Price Rlisk — Gjully Seciwtiies amd Fleed Secured Motes

The Company’s expasure o equity securities price risk aries from investmernts Eretel Ltd ard floed secured
nates,

Ak 30 June 2025, the Company’s exposure to equity price risk was insignificant

2025

Changes in Market price  Effect on profits and equity

% BURDD0
Irmeestrmnent in Listed Securities (Emtel Lt and Listed +5 23815
Mokeg) 5 (23,815)

Privzte Gty Furnds — Price and Corrency Transtation fisk
Curing the financial year ended 30 lune 2025 the Company made its first investment into private aguity funds
denominated in USD. This represents @ new source of foreign ourrency risk for the Company, and the assodated

exposure s expected to increase as further commitrents are drawn dowen or additional investments are made.

A 3t year end, the investment was valued at MUR, 1526 million eguivalent

2025
Increase/ (decrease) in
HUFI:E-III‘IH;EUH:D Effect on profits and equity
% FLURDOD
+5 {9358}
trvestmert [n private equity funds
SRR TN X 9,358

{iiy Credit risk

The Company takes on exposuie 1o credil risk, which is the risk that a counterpamy will be unatde 1o pay
amounts n full when due. The Company monitcrs changes in oedit nsk by absening the default and loss
epelience of the counterparties. The Company's expodure o credit Tisk anses in respect of the fallowing
finarcial Ingtrirmenbe

2025 2024
MILIR 000 MUR'000
Redelvabiles 12,741 20499

Cash and cash equivalents 28,210468 26445812
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

24. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (COMNTINUED)

A, Financial sk factors (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Cazh and cash equivalents 1s held exclusively with the Bank of Maurtius, which Is the central bank of the
Republic of Mauritius. The Bank of Mauritius i a gowvernment-owned institution and does not camy a separate
credit rating.

T assess credit risk, the Company uses the soversign credit rating of the Govemnment of Mauritius a5 3 proxy,
ghven that the central bank is backed by the state, &5 at 30 Jupe 2025, Maurltius hokls 2 Baad (2024: Baa3) fram
Moody's credit rating, indicating investment-grade credit guality.

Based on this assessment, the Company considers the credit nsk of its cash balances to be low and has applied
the low credit risk exemplion under IFRS 9,

The recelvates are due fram the Comparm’s subsigian and the expecied credit o is degmed 1o be [mmaterial
and therefore not recognisad.

although debt instrurments measured at Falr Walue Through Profit of Loss (PYTPL) are not subject to the
recognition of expected credit ksses (ECL) under IFRS 9, the Company dassifies these instruments nfo Stages 1
to 3 fior internal credit risk monitoring and regulatory disdosumre purposes, in line with Section 36 of the Bank of
Maurithus Guideline on Provisioning and Write-off of Credit Exposures, The Company cantinues to moenitar all
credit exposures closely and updates staging classifications at each reporting date.

The staging categories used by the Company are as follows:

Minimum
il M 4 Provisioning Rate DN
These exposures show clear credit weaknesses (e.qg. detariorating cash
flows, financial position). They are past due by more than %0 days but
1 sub-standard 255% not more than 180 days, or have been restructured ance. The 25%
provision reflects moderate risk of kss
These ewposures hawve worsened beyond sub-standard, with serious
doubts about full recovery without relying on collateral They are past
3 Doubtul L% due by more than 180 days but not more than 360 days, The S0%
provision reflects high risk of partial loss.
These exposures ang considered uncollectible and of negligible value,
5% (if MPE < 4 years) |[Even If some collateral exists, its recoverable value s less than 10% of the
3 Lass 100% (if NPE = 4 |Exposure. The provision increases o 100% after 4 years, reflecting the

years) near certainty of full loss.
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MAURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD
a5
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FIMNANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

24, FIMAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

A. Financlal risk factors {Continued)

The Cormpany™s credit risk & mithpated through a combination of collateral and other cred® enhancement, which
are summadised below

- The Campany hokds searity over both specific and general assets of the [ssuers via fixed and Aoating charges.
- Cerkain investments are seoured throwgh the assignment or pledge of receivables

- Letters of guarantes are obtained from the shareholders of some lsuers, providing an additional recourse in
the evert of default,
- While nat a direct credit enhancement, corsertibility offers potentlal value ecovery through squity conversion

Ta ensure adequate credit protection over its Bomds and Notes nvestments, the Company applies a
conservative collatenal valuatian and rmanitaring process, Collateral received fram issuers is subject to halmouls,
reflecting market wolatility, asset quality, and liquidity. This ensures that the Company's exposure remains fully
covered at all tmes, even In stressed conditlons

Callateral values are regularly assesced thiough a pracess that invalves:
- Aratysing the credit data of Bsuers obtaired from the MOEB (Mauritius Credit information Bureau);

- Caleulating the remalning nat free ascet coverage, representing the poertlen of eollateral still pallable ta repay
the Company after all deductions

- Deducting the carning amount of the bond exposure from the discounted (haircut) value of the callaterns
provvided

Collatera] and guarantees are agsessed al nceplicn ard monitoresd regulaly, The Campany nsures proper
legal dooumentation & in place and performs periodic reviews to evaluate chamges in collateral value or

crediteworthiness of guarantors.

The Company does not have the right to sell or repledge the collateral unless the owner of the collatersl
defaults, Mo assels were repossessed during the financial year ended 30 June 2025,

{iil} Cancentration risk

AL at the reporting dabe, the Company's financial asets at far value through prafit or loss were concentrated in

2025 2024

MUR' 000 % MLIRD00 %
Accommodation and food services 13, 640,0:00 T5% 14,333,952 13%
Manufachuring 2,568,000 149 3,064,150 16%
Arts and entertainment 5,000 025 162573 1%
Canstrudian 40,000 02% 428717 2%
Real estate 815,000 4% 930,344 5%
Others 1,202 886 7% B2 324 4%

18, 300,666 100% 19,762,761 %




MALURITIUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

24, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

A. Financial risk Tactors (Continued)
(i) Liguidity rizk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Compary will net be able (o meet s financial cbligations as they fall due. The
Comparny's appraach to managing lguidity rsk i To ersure, a3 far as possible, that It will always have suffickent
liguidity to meest itz Eabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withowt incuming

unacceptable losses or rsking damage to the Company's reputation.

Uiliirate responsibility for lguidity sk management rests with the Board of Directon who abo menitors the
Compary's short, medium and leng-term funding and liquidity management requirements. At 30 June 2025, the
Campany was nat exposed to any liguidity risk as it has sufficent cash resources to sefth its abligations. in full

a5 they fall due

The tabie below summarises the maturity profile of the Compam™s financial lablles at the reperting date:

n Less than 3 Ito12
Demand  months months 1 to5Vears =5 Years Total
MUR'0M  MUR GOD MUR 00D MLYR a0 MUR 00D MR D00
2025
Other Pavables 41,163 . . = - 41,163
41,163 . - = - 41,163
024
Crther Payables 17,118 - 17,518
17,119 - 17,114

B. Financial instruments
(i} Categorles of finandal instruments

The table below provides a reconciliation of the line items in the Company's statement of financial postion to

the categories of finandal Insruments.

Financial assets

Beongds and Motes

Investment In wibsidiaries
Investment in athar securities
Investrment 10 private equlty funds
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Total assets

Financial liabilities
Other payables

2025 2024
Financial Fi il
Financial a5 Financial i
asmats at assats at
at amortised ' 4 amortsed
FVTPL FYTPL
oot L0S5E
MUR 00 M UR DO Restated hA LR OO0
kALI RO

15,882 588 - 202521950 -
5058392 - 74412850 -
226,086 = E 2
152,679 - -
= ZR21D46T 26445 8131
= 12711 20,491
—21. 310,745 ZJ8S32.178 7003460 JE406 304

2025 2024
Financial Finan<ial
liability at liability at
amo rilsed amortEsd
oosl st
MUR'000 MUR D00

41,163 17,118

e
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24, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (COMNTIMUELD)

B. Financial instruments (Contineed)
iy Valuation framework for investment in financial assets

Convemible bonds and nobes

The Compary malntains an establihed framework over the fali vaiue measurement of s bond and note
imwastments. |ssuer-specific information is compiled by a dedicated team, while valuations are performed by a
qualified professional using appoved models. The models are updated as necessary to reflect developments,
and fai values are reviewed by management and validated by the relevant commities

i subasidiart

The Campary values e invedtiment it 2ole subidlary at falr value thaaugh prafit or 1o uging the Met Acoet
alie (MAY] method. This method determines fair value based on the subsidianys underliing aszets and
llabilities, adjusted to their fair vaues as appropriate

Management reviews the subsidiany’s financial position as at the reporting date, assesses the camying amounts
af it assers and labkdites, and makes netessary Tair value adjustments The valuaticen i updated anrually o
mare frequently if significant changes coour in the subsidiany's financial condition or market envirenment,

The irmeestment properties af the subskdan wers valued an 30 June 2025 by BREA Ltd, The Company valued the
imvastment in subsidiaries uzing the net asset valuation method,

Cther financial assets

The camying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and cther pavabies approamate their fair
values. The Company adopted IFRS 13, 'Fair wvalue measurement’, for finandial instruments that are measured in
the statement of financial positicn aft fair value, which reguires disclosune of falr value measurements by level of
the falloweing fair value measuremeant hierarchy:

- Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets o liakilites {level 1)

- Inputs other than quoted prces Included within level 1 that are shaervable for theasset or llability, elther
directly ithat ig ag prices) ar indiectly (that le derteed fram price<) [level 27

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cheervable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
fhewed 33,

The table below sets out the carying amounts and fair valies of the Compamy's financial assets, together with
thedr levels in the fair vakee hlerarchy, Exscept where otherwise stated, the camyirg amounts of financial assets
and finandal llabllitles are conskdered to approximate thelr falr values.

Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 e Falr value
anaunt

2025 MURQD  MUR'DDD MUR 00D MUR 000 MUR'0DD
Investment in subsidiary . . 5,058,392 5,058 392 5058392
Fimancial as=ets at FVTPL 478,360 - 15,782,993 16,261,353 16,261,353
Total 478,360 - 20,841,385 21,319,745 21,319,745
2024 Restated
Investment in subsidiaries - - Tad1 265 Foadd 1,265 TAd1 065
Finan<ial assets at FVTPL 252405 - 19,505 TEE 20,252 195 20,252 195
Tatal 252,408 - 2vddiH5 2TE83460 27693460
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MNOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
24, FIMANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
B. Financial instruments (Continesd)
{li} valuation framewoark for investment in financial assets {(Continued)
The following table presents the reconciliation for financial assets at FVTPL categorized &s lewval 3 hierarchy:
Resstated
2025 2024
MURDO0 RALIR 0
Ak start of year 15,999,786 17,105,405
Additians during the year 1,067 667 2,895,000
Redermptions and dgposal during the wear (1,467, 000) (330,000
Interest receivable 929,708 848,162
Interest recehved (953, 986) (B45442]
hdavarnant [n falr value of financial assets at FVTPL {3, 793,182) 326,661
AL end of year 15,782,993 19,999 76

There were no transfers bebween the lewels during the wear. The reconciliation for investment in subsidiaries is
disclosed in Moke 9
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE AINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2023

24 FINANCIAL RESE MANAGEMENT (CONTIMNUUED)

B, Finanda instrumants
(il} Valuation framework for | rvestment in flirancial asests (Continued)

Sigri femnt upohisryalde nputs (Continued)
& detalled anakysis of the valuation methodosogy to the podtfodo Investrrents &5 highlighited bebowr

Scemand—based approach for convertible bords

The valuaton of Bonds ireomporeies a scenara-based hybnd model that combines stuciural and manket-corsstent
approaches Defaull probabilites sre estimated udng & Memon framesors based on Bsuer-goecilic finandal data and
equny yolatility, These are Integrated with the MUR isk-free yleld cunve through Monte Carlo simulations o denive
expected cash figews ang disoount factors

The resulting Implad credit spreack ame benchmarked against interest Covernge Ratie (CR)-based relerence spreads
conslstent, with market evidence. Where differences anise, spread adiustments are applied 4o enswe that vabuations
appsomistely reflect both Bsuer furdamesntals and prevailing market conditsons.

Significant unohserable nputs
Einanclal aecets a1 FVTPL
Typeof | Fairvalue ot “Waluation Sagmificant Rangs of Fiir value
mistrument 3 Juna technigques unobsenabia estimates measLrement
L e ingats {weag brbesd- sensitiviby to
averaga] for unobservable
unchserabla inputs
irpits
Cormdartibla)  MURGID  [The model applies a hybed [MLUR yield 4T1%-619%  |An
bonds TRE7HE80  fstructurad and market- CLrea [2024; 3,77% - 5.55%) [increase| decreass)
{2024 bazed sppraad, cormibaning in the MUIR yield
(Rastabadk  fthe MUR rsk-free yield curve weoaikd result in
MIURTCOD  Joumve, default probakbdities i |erwesrf g e o
19946266 festenated via a Mertan vaikie,
framewark. and Monte Frobabiling o a1 - 52 9% I TEsE S B e £
Carky simuiaticns to delaui [2024:0.13% - 1.3%%) | in the probability of
datenmine bond values. The disTavit wiousd result
implad spreads ang in & Boweer i ghe)
barchmarked against 1CR- fair value
bassd fefererke spreads, A
with adjustmenls made 1o Ingreaset e ceases)
align mracel oubcormes vith in gredit spread
market-consmstend levels, woddd result ina
where appicabde ke Shigher) fak
value,
Irsestmar | WLIRTCOD et asset vakue Met mset walus| MUR 13508 (2024 | Significant
in 5,058,392 per shara of the KIIR 134,771 increassydacreass) in the
sutbsidiary 12024 inestee LAY vl
IELIREA00) COfrIpdny increassydecieases) the
741,265 | fair value

{iil) Capital risk management
The Company manages its capital o ensuwre that it will be abda to ronfnue &5 a going concam whila maximising the raturn
to its sharshofder thmugh the optimisation of aquity bafanra The capital stracture of the Company conssts of share
cacatal, retamed eamings. revakumation msarve and fair vakiahon resande.

C, Capital Structurs mmd Fumnding

The Corrpary |5 prmanty funded threugh equity capital contifuted by s sharebodders, There is no axtemal debt finarding as

at 30 e 2025, The equity furding appesach supports the Compary's financial fesdbdity and aligns with its sk management

objactives.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2025

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if they hawve the
ability, diractly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise significant influence ower the Company in making
financial and operating decislons, or vice versa, or If they and the Cormpany are subject oo commaon contrel. Related
partes may be Individuals e other entitles.

The recelvables and payvables frarm related parties are interest-free unseoured, do not have fixed repayment tems,
and are repayabde on demand. Settlement occurs in cash.

The company paid cerfain xpenses an behalf of its subskdiang MIC Smart city Itd, and the subsidiangs sugar cane
income was transferred directly to the compamy's bank account, with the related receivables and payables arising
from these transactions

Other key management pesannel remuneration comprises salaries and fees paid ta the Chief Executive Officer, the
Cormpary Secretany, the fnvestment Committes Mermbers, and the Officer-in-Charge. all redated party transactions
ware cenducted under normal commercial terms and conditions and at arm's [ength

Detalls of the natude, volms of trarsactions and kalances with the related entities are as fallcws:
Transaction
made during Outstanding
the year balance

Related Party and Relationship Mature of Transaction MUR OO0 MUIR' 00
2025
Bank of Mauritius= Parent Cath and cash equivalents - 28210465
Expan id on behalf of MIC Smart
MIC Smart City Ltd = Subsidiary . i - 9,103
Incoimne codlected on behalf of MIC —
Smart City t }
Het amount recefvables . 12,662
Key management personnel - Directors  Directors” fees 6,632 -
Other key management personnel Salaries and other short term bensfits 5128 1,250
Transaction

made during Ouistanding
the year balance

Related Party and Relationship Hature of Transaction MUR'000  MUR'000
24
Bank af Mauiltivus — Parent Cash and ash equivalents - 26,445 812
MIC Smart City Ltd — Subsidiary Expenses pald on behalf of MIC Smart City 13,449

Income collacted on behalf of MIC Smart (20,043

Met ameunt recetables . 20,491
Key management personnel - Directors Directars fees 8,123 -
Other key management perionnel Salaries and ather short term benefits

Reter to Mate 9 and 10 far [I56of subsklianes and assocabes,
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26. FRIOR YEAR ADJMISTMENTS

(1) Overstatemant of Revenue and financial assets at faiir value through profit or loss

Curing the ourrent financial year, the Company identified a prior periad eror elgting & the owrstatement of
interest inceme and finandal assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss {comeemtible bonds| Inthe financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024,

The errcr resulted from an incomect recognition of interest income amounting to MUR 486 millicn in the prior year's
staterment of profit or loss. Consequently, the carning amount of financial assets at FYTPL was alsa overstated by
MUR 486 milllion ag at 30 June 2024, In sccordance with 1AS B — Aceountlng Pollcles, Changss In Aceounting
Estimates and Errors, the Company has restated the comparative figures te comect this ermor,

{2) Dwerstatement of Investment in associates

The Company accounts for its Investments in assoclates af cost less impairment in accordance with 145 36
trpairmentt of Assets. For the year ended 30 June 2024, the Company has [dentified an impairment Indication and
has remeasured &s imvestment in AHL based an the reported figures of the respective entities at 30 June 2024,
Diurlng the financial year ended 30 Jupe 2025, the Compary [dentified an ermor whersky the flgure reported by AHL
wias rrilsstated and does net reflect the carrect recoverable amount

The ernor arose due tooomissions and incorrect inputs used in the determination of the recoverable amcant, which
resulted in an owverstatement af the carrying amount of the irrestrment as at 30 June 2024 The correct recoverable
armaut woukd have indicated that additional impalrment foss should have been recognised in that period,

However, in accordance with paragraphs 43 1o 45 of 185 8 Accounting Policles, Changes In Accoiinting Estimates ohd
Ermes , the Company has mat restated the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2024, The determination
of the recoverable amount as at 30 June 2024 would require the use of hindsight, particulary in relaticn ko cash flow
prajections and diseaunt rates, which were not abjectively determinable at the time and i hence impracticabde

The Company has recognised an impairment (o5 of MUR 43 Billich in e cuent wead ended 30 Jure 2025 This
impairment has been recognised in the statement of profit or koss under *Impairment of investment in assocates”.

The Company continues to assess its investments in associates for impairment at each reporting date in accordance
with 145 36

The effect of the atxove restatements on the statement af Tinandial positicn are as Tolldws,
Separate Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024

POVOIRY  siustmenk Dastaied

reporied
MUR 000 MUR"T:00 NTUIR" Q00
Financial assets at FVTPL 20,738,871 86 6TE) 20252195
Total assats! 82 BT0,.260 (486, 676) 82 353 584
Retalned earnings MTEIT (488ETE) (69,099)
Total equity B2 E53 141 [4Ba6TE)  B2366 465

* Previowsly reported balance as adjusted as per Moke 2e)

Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2024

Previously
: | Adjustment Restated

MUR 00D MUR 000 MUR" DD
tnterest Income an bomds and notes 1,347 372 486 6T &) B0 EDE
Profit/{icss) for the year 400,470 {485 6T 8) (45, 708)

The restatement has no effect on tax or deferred tax of the cormparny,
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MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2025

ZT,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Following the resignation of Mr Gérard Samspeur as Director on 23 August 2025 the Shareholder appointed Mr
Ramsamy Chinniah as Directar of the Campany with effect 23 October 2025,

On 3 September 2025, the Board of Directors approved the setting up of a Land Committes to owversee al matters,
including land development projects related to the land heldings of the Company as well as its subsidiary.

28, TAMATION

29,

The Company i= exempted from any tax imposed on income, profits or capital gairs under the Second Schedule of
the Mauritius Incomse Tax Act 1995 a5 it 15 a subsidiary of the bank af Mauritius,

COMTINGENCIES

There i= currently one pending case before the Supreme Cowurt against Menlo Park Ltd. The timing and outcome of
thiz claim will be dependent upon the judiclal system and cannat be reliably assessed,

There are several ongaing investigaticns with the Central Crime Investigation Departrent and the Financlal Crimes
Commission. The outcome of these investigations cannot be reliably assessed for the time being. A< at date the MIC
does not foreses any material impact an its financial reperting,
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